A REGULAR MEETING
Of The
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER BOARD
Will Be Held On
TUESDAY, May 9, 2017
At
5:15 p.m.
In The
COMMISSION CHAMBERS

(2" floor, Governmental Center)
400 Boardman Avenue

Traverse City Light and Power will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services,
such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at
the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon notice to Traverse City
Light and Power. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact
the Light and Power Department by writing or calling the following.

Jennifer J. St. Amour
Administrative Assistant
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686
(231) 922-4940 ext. 201

Traverse City Light and Power Posting Date: May 5, 2017

1131 Hastings Street

3:00 p.m.

Traverse City, MI 49686

(231) 922-4940




Light and Power Board 2 May 9, 2017
Regular Meeting

AGENDA
Pledge of Allegiance
1. Roll Call

2. Consent Calendar

The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items
tfogether to be dealt with by one Board motion without discussion. Any member of the Board,
staff or the public may ask that any item on the consent calendar be removed therefiom and
placed elsewhere on the agenda for full discussion. Such requests will be automatically
respected. If an item is not removed from the consent calendar, the action noted in parentheses
on the agenda is approved by a single Board action adopting the consent calendar.

a. Consideration of approving the minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 11, 2017.
(Approval recommended) (p.4)

b. Receive and file minutes of HR Ad Hoc Committee meeting of April 24, 2017.
(Approval recommended) (p.9)

£ Receive and file minutes of HR Ad Hoc Committee meeting of May 2, 2017.
(Approval recommended) (p.10)

d. Consideration of confirming transfer of funds in the amount of $125,000 from the Fiber
Fund to Electric Fund. (Approval recommended) (Myers-Beman) (p.11)

& Consideration of authorizing a purchase order to RESCO in the amount of
$40,059.00 for transformers for BW-31 Distribution Circuit Rebuild Project.
(Chartrand) (Approval recommended) (p.12)

f Consideration of approval of 60 month Lease Agreement with Gold and Jaye Jewelry
at 130 Hall Street. (Approval recommended) (Arends) (p.14)

g. Consideration of approval of Barlow Transformer #1 and #2 Project Authorization
Request and authorizing staff to seek competitive bids. (Approval recommended)
(Arends/Chartrand) (p.27)

h. Consideration of approval of Critical and Large Customer Project Authorization Request
and authorizing staff to seeck competitive bids. (Approval recommended)
(Arends/Chartrand) (p.30)

i Consideration of approval of a Construction Agreement in the amount of $42,800.00 with
5 Star Directional Drilling Inc. for boring services for Costco Relocation Project.

(Approval recommended) (Chartrand) (p.33)

Items Removed From Consent Calendar




Light and Power Board 3 May 9, 2017
Regular Meeting

3. Unfinished Business

a. Consideration of awarding bid to Eaton for Advanced Metering Infrastructure
Project. (Menhart/Arends) (p.34)

b. Consideration of amending the Six Year Capital Improvements Plan -2017 to include
Fiber to the Premises Project (FTTP). (Arends/Menhart) (p.43)

4. New Business

a. Consideration of approval of Kalkaska Combustion Turbine Operations and Maintenance
Agreement between TCL&P and MPPA. (Arends) (p.50)

b. Consideration of the purchase of real property at 1125 Hastings Street. (Arends) (p.78)

8 Consideration of M-72 Solar Proposal. (Arends) (p.86)

5. Appointments

a. Consideration of establishing an FTTP Ad Hoc Committee. (Arends) (verbal)

6. Reports and Communications

a. From Legal Counsel.

From Staff.

1. Report on Art on Utility Infrastructure. (Arends) (p.89)
2. Report on Alpena Line School visit. (Schroeder) (p.94)

From Board.

7. Public Comment

/js




TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

Minutes of Regular Meeting
Held at 5:15 p.m., Commission Chambers, Governmental Center
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

Board Members -
Present: Jan Geht, Ross Hammersley, Pat McGuire, Jeff Palisin, Amy Shamroe,
Tim Werner
Absent: John Taylor
Ex Officio Member -
Present: Marty Colburn, City Manager
Others: Tim Arends, W. Peter Dor \/Ia ‘NOL'dfjo'.i:&,'..S_cott Menhart, Karla

Myers-Beman, Kelli Sc 1, Mark Watson; Tony Chartrand, Jennifer J.

St. Amour

The meeting was called to order at 5:15 p.m. by Se

Secretary Tim Arends opened the fl
Board:

McGuire nominated Jan Geht, Werner sec ded.

Chairman’
Board:

MecGuire nominatec J_gff Palisin V\i?i&(erner seconded.

Chairman Geht closed the floor to nominations.

CARRIED unanimously. (Taylor absent)

Chairman Geht recommended Tim Arends be reappointed Secretary for the Light and Power
Board. Consensus of the Board that Tim Arends be reappointed Secretary for the Light and
Power Board.




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 2 April 11,2017

Chairman Geht asked for volunteers to serve on the Human Resources Ad Hoc Committee.
McGuire, Palisin, and Shamroe volunteered, with Taylor as the alternate.

CARRIED unanimously. (Taylor absent)
Tim Arends requested item 2e and item 6b (3) be removed from the Agenda.
Tim Werner requested item 2g be removed from the Consent Calendar for further discussion.

Ttem 2 on the Agenda being Consent Calendar

Moved by McGuire, seconded by Shamroe, that the following actions, as recommended on the
Consent Calendar portion of the Agenda, as amended, be approyed:

a. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of March 14, 2017:
b. Approval of the Electric Utility 2017-18 Opeya:tfigg‘Budéétﬁ )

C. Approval of the Fiber 2017-18 Opex‘ati;;g:‘BﬁEiget.

d. Approval of the IBM Operating Agreeﬁi‘éﬁﬁ;:;:_

o Removed by the Executive Diréctor.

The following ,_;:idividua' addressed the Board:

Tim Arends, Executive Director
Karla Myers-Beman, Controller

Moved by Werner, seconded by Shamroe, that the Board authorizes the Secretary and Chairman
to execute a Pole Attachment Agreement with Michigan Broadband Services for the installation
of fiber on Traverse City Light & Power poles per the requirements of the agreement as
presented, subject to approval as to substance by the Executive Director and as to form by
General Counsel.

CARRIED unanimously. (Taylor absent)




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 3 April 11,2017

Ttem 3 on the Agenda being Unfinished Business

None.

Item 4 on the Agenda being New Business

a. Consideration of a Project Authorization Request for removal and transfer of Hickory
Meadows Distribution Line to Randolph Street.

The following individuals addressed the Board:
Tim Arends, Executive Director
Moved by McGuire, seconded by Hammersley, that the Boar é{ﬁthorizes the Staff to proceed

with the removal and transfer of Hickory Meadows Dlstub ' Line to Randolph St. and seek
the necessary Board approval for expenditures.

CARRIED unanimously. (Taylor absent)

b. Consideration of approving a Purchasé Order for wire 1'elati11g‘fo'j_t:ll1‘e_:: Costeo Line

Improvement Project.

The following individuals addiessed the Boar

thonzes the Executive Director to
$78 965.25, more or less, for wire

Pete D01én i?Genelal Counsel
Matt No1dfj01d iEShaleholdel Cohl. Stoker & Toskey, PC

Moved by McGuire, seconded‘by Shamroe, that the Board enter into closed session following
public comment to consider the strategy and negotiation of the Collective Bargaining Agreement
between TCL&P Board and the Utility Workers Union of America, AFL-CIO, Local No. 25, and

to adjourn immediately thereafter.

Roll Call:
Yes- McGuire, Hammersley, Palisin, Shamroe, Werner, Geht

CARRIED.

Item S on the Agenda being Appointments

None.




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 4 April 11,2017

Item 6 on the Agenda being Reports and Communications

a.

From Legal Counsel.
Pete Doren reported on Michigan Legislature — House Bill 4220
The following individuals addressed the Board:

Tim Arends, Executive Director
Marty Colburn, City Manager

From Staft.

1. Presentation of LaFranier/Barlow T1ansm1ssm Lme Upgrade Project close-out
report.

The following individuals address.ed?%l'_ic'ﬁoard:

Karla Myers-Beman, Controllé;

2. Presentation of MPPA’S Repmt Cal

s:addressed the Board:

The following md1v1du:

Karla Myers-Beman, Con {ollei

“Scott Menhart, Managel of. Telecom & Technology
: ‘A1ends Executive Director

Presentation of options for IMW solar installation within TCL&P’s service

The following individuals addressed the Board:

Tim Arends, Executive Director
Karla Myers-Beman, Controller
Marty Lagina, Founder & Chief Executive, Heritage Sustainable Energy, LLC




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 2 April 11,2017

c. From Board

Amy Shamroe reminded the Board that it was the TCL&P Annual Seedling
Giveaway beginning April 17, 2017

Marty Colburn reported that he, TCL&P employee Rod Solak, TC Fire Chief Tuller,
and TC Fire Captain Mueller were attending a class funded by FEMA for Utility

Distribution Systems.

Item 7 on the Agenda being Public Comment

a. General

No one from the public commented.

7:26 the Board entered into closed session.




TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

Minutes
Executive Director’s Performance Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee
Held at 10:00 a.m., 2" Floor, Governmental Center Committee Room

Monday, April 24, 2017
Committee Members -
Present: Jeff Palisin, Amy Shamroe, Pat McGuire
Others: Kelli Schroeder

The meeting was called to order at 10:03 a.m. by Amy Shamroe.
1. Discussion regarding the Executive Director’s Performance Evaluation.

Committee members discussed the Executive Director’s Performance Evaluation.

2. Public Comment
No one from the public commented.

There being no objection, Amy Shamroe declared the meeting adjourned at 10:40 a.m.

Jan Geht, Chairman
/is LIGHT AND POWER BOARD




TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

Minutes
Executive Director’s Performance Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee
Held at 4:00 p.m., Large Conference Room
1131 Hastings Street
Tuesday, May 2, 2017

Committee Members -

Present (via conference call): Jeff Palisin (Ad Hoc Chair), Amy Shamroe, Pat McGuire

Others: Kelli Schroeder

The meeting was called to order at 4:02 p.m. by Jeff Palisin.

 [F

2,

Discussion regarding the Executive Director’s Performance Evaluation.

Committee members discussed the Executive Director’s Performance Evaluation and
recommend no changes to Tim Arends’ June 9, 2016 Agreement. He shall receive a 3%
increase effective June 9, 2017 for a total annual compensation of $128,158.

For next year’s evaluation, the Ad Hoc Committee recommends that a four tiered rating
system be implemented, thus providing the Executive Director more guidance on his
performance and areas needing improvement. The rating system would include the
following: Exceeds Expectations; Satisfactory; Needs Improvement; Unsatisfactory.

Additionally, the Ad Hoc would like to propose that prior to the start of next year’s
evaluation, the Executive Director be invited to prepare a memo outlining his
accomplishments and challenges throughout the year. This input will then be used to
assist the Board Members during their review process.

Public Comment

No one from the public commented.

There being no objection, Jeff Palisin declared the meeting adjourned at 4:20 p.m.

/ks

Jan Geht, Chairman
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

10




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MAY 9, 2017

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Karla Myers-Beman, Controller
Date: May 2, 2017
Subject: Interfund transfer

As part of the budgeting process this year, staff projected and budgeted for the 2016-17 fiscal
year a voluntary transfer from the Fiber Fund to the Electric Utility Fund in the amount of
$125,000. This voluntary transfer is for repayment of the initial capital contribution in the
amount of $1,208,876 made by the Electric Utility Fund to the Fiber Fund for the construction of
the dark fiber system. The initial capital contribution was not originally recorded as an
interfund loan between the two funds, because at the time it was not management’s intention for
the capital contribution to be repaid.

The March 31, 2017 Fiber Fund’s balance sheet shows a cash balance of $206,073 and staff has
projected the Fiber Fund to have an approximate cash balance of $258,463 not including the
transfer as of June 30, 2017. Staff believes this is an adequate cash balance to allow for the
voluntary transfer of $125,000 in the 2016-17 fiscal year and is requesting authorization from the
Board to make the transfer.

Staff will review this on an annual basis and bring this before the Board before the end of each
fiscal year if the Fiber Fund warrants adequate cash balance for the voluntary transfer payment.

This item is appearing on the Consent Calendar as staff deems to be a non-controversial item.
Approval of this item on the Consent Calendar means you agree with staff’s recommendation.

If any of the Board or member of the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be removed and place under “Items Removed from Consent Calendar”
portion for the agenda for full discussion.

If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the following motion would be
appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY » THAT THE

BOARD AUTHORIZES THE INTERFUND TRANSFER OF $125,000 FROM THE FIBER FUND

TO THE ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND.

11



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MAY 9, 2017

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board

From: Tony Chartrand, System Engineer/Key Accounts

Date: May 2, 2017

Subject: Purchase order for transformers for BW-31 Distribution Circuit Rebuild Project

Staff solicited quotes for transformers for the BW-31 Distribution Circuit Rebuild Project. Three vendors
submitted quotes summarized below with one vendor submitting quotes by two different manufacturers:

Power Line

Resco Supply Wesco Wesco
(ERMCO) (EATON) (Howard) (ABB)
Item Description | Qty | Extended Cost | Extended Cost | Extended Cost | Extended Cost

25KV A Polemount 23 $ 20,102.00 $ 18,883.00 $ 23,529.00 | $ 18,009.00
S0KVA Polemount | 18 $ 21,924.00 $ 23,112.00 [ $ 27,648.00 [
25KV A Padmount 7 $ 13,041.00 $ 11,837.00 NO BID
50K VA Padmount 3 0 $ 18,448.00 $ 17,792.00 NO BID
Extended Totals $ 64,353.00 $ 73,484.00 $ 80,806.00 $ 40,059.00
Purchase Totals $ 22,327.00 $ - $ - $ 40,059.00

On the above transformers staff took into consideration that transformers will have energy losses over
their operating lifetime and in each of the transformer types above the cash bid amount represented the
lowest transformer cost except for the 50 KVA Polemount. The total transformer cost was less with the
higher bid of Wesco — ABB.

This was not an all-inclusive quote and therefore staff will be separating purchases to obtain the best
pricing (those highlighted in green). The 25KVA and 50 KVA polemount transformers that will be
purchased through Wesco - ABB, at a cost of $18,009 and $22,050, respectively, are not within the
Executive Director’s spending authority and require board approval.

The remaining transformers, the 25KVA and 50KVA padmount transformers, at a cost of $22,327 are
within the Executive Director’s spending authority.

This item is appearing on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed by staff to be a non-controversial item.
Approval of this item on the Consent Calendar means you agree with staff’s recommendation,

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying questions, it
should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the agenda for full
discussion.

12




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MAY 9, 2017

If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the following motion would be
appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY , THAT THE

BOARD AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ISSUE A PURCHASE ORDER TO
RESCO IN THE AMOUNT OF $40,059. FOR TRANSFORMERS TO BE USED FOR THE BW-31

DISTRIBUTION CIRCUIT REBUILD PROJECT.

13




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MAY 9, 2017

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board

From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: May 2, 2017

Subject: Hall Street Tenant Lease Agreement

Staff is requesting approval of a lease agreement between Traverse City Light & Power and
Jennifer Anderson d.b.a. Gold and Jaye Jewelry for the tenant space at 130 Hall Street.

Gold and Jaye Jewelry is highly recommended by the property manager based on information
obtained through their application process. It is a local company that has been in business
primarily online through the Etsy website, however, plans to expand by providing a retail store
front with jewelry repairs and custom made jewelry.

The lease commences May 12, 2017 and provides the space at a cost of $16.50 per square foot per
month that incorporates nine parking spaces. The monthly lease revenue (not accounting for the
partial month) is $2,062.50 or an annual amount of $24,750.00 with an annual escalation of 1.75%.
The total lease revenue over the next five years will be $129,488.20. The brokerage fee for placing
this tenant is $6,474.41, or 5% of the total lease revenue. The lease’s monthly rental rate reflects
the current market rate in the area and allows for inflationary increases on an annual basis.

This item is on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed non-controversial. Approval of this item on
the Consent Calendar means you agree with staff’s recommendations.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the
agenda for full discussion. If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the
following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY

THAT THE LIGHT AND POWER BOARD AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH JENNIFER ANDERSON
DBA GOLD AND JAYE JEWELRY AT THE TENANT SPACE AT 130 HALL STREET
FOR A PERIOD OF 60 MONTHS, SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO FORM BY
COUNSEL.

14




LEASE

THISLEASE, madethis_ dayof ,2017 by and between the TRAVERSE
CITY LIGHT & POWER DEPARTMENT, a Michigan municipal electric utility, of 1 131 Hastings Street,
Traverse City, Michigan 49684 ("Landlord") and, JENNIFER ANDERSON d.b.a. GOLD AND JAYE
JEWELRY, of 3924 Prouty Rd. Apt. C, Traverse City, Michigan 49686, ("Tenant").

WITNESSETH:

ARTICLE 1: Premises.

Landlord hereby leases to Tenant, and Tenant hereby leases from Landlord, for the term and on
the conditions hereinafier provided, the space consisting of (i) approximately one thousand five hundred
(1,500) square feet of ground floor area, and (ii) nine (9) parking spaces, all as depicted on the plan
attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof as Exhibit A, and all appurtenances thereto,
located in the building owned by Landlord situated in the City of Traverse City, State of Michigan, and
generally known as 130 Hall Street. Tenant further acknowledges that access to and use of the parking
spaces may not be available during emergency situations occurring at Landlord’s property. Landlord
shall, when possible, provide Tenant advance notice of such situations.

The space described above and leased to Tenant is hereinafter called the "premises” and the
structure on such premises enclosing the ground floor area is hereinafter called the "building."

ARTICLE 2: Use.

The building is hereby leased for retail, office, and jewelry manufacturing purposes. The
parking spaces are hereby leased only for parking.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, it is expressly understood that
Landlord shall not be construed or held to be a joint venturer, partner, or associate of Tenant in the conduct
of its business, the relationship between the parties hereto being at all times that of landlord
and tenant, and it is also agreed that Tenant shall be under no obligation or duty to continuously
operate its business at the premises.

ARTICLE 3: Term.

The premises are hereby leased to Tenant to have and to hold for a term commencing on the
"Commencement Date" (as herein defined) and continuing for a partial month, if any, and five (5) years,
unless said term shall be terminated earlier or extended, as provided in this lease.

Provided that Tenant is not in default under this Lease during the original term and Tenant gives
proper notice, Tenant shall have the option to extend this lease agreement for one additional term of five
(5) years by providing Landlord written notice of its exercise of this option to renew not less than 120 days
before the end of the original term. The additional term shall be on the same terms and conditions as this
lease agreement, except for the provisions regarding rent and additional rent which shall be mutually agreed
upon, if possible. The parties agree to begin negotiations regarding rent, at the request of either party, six

15




months before expiration of the original term. If rent and additional rent cannot be agreed upon, in writing,
before there are less than 45 days left on the original term, the option to renew is extinguished, even if
propetly exercised.

ARTICLE 4: Delivery of Possession.

May 12,2017 shall be the "Commencement Date" and the date of delivery of the premises to Tenant.
After signing this lease, Tenant may enter the premises and perform, at its expense, all such work previously
approved by Landlord, and to equip the premises with such trade fixtures and personal property necessary
or desirable for such purposes. All such work by Tenant shall be done in a good and first-class workmanlike
manner and in accordance with all applicable laws, ordinances and building codes.

ARTICLE 5: Security Deposit.

Upon signing, Tenant shall pay Landlord a security deposit of Two Thousand Sixty Two Dollars
and Fifty Cents ($2,062.50) within 30 days thereof, which may be commingled and used by Landlord, but
an equivalent amount shall be applied upon vacancy by Tenant to cover any damage caused by Tenant or
its invitees or applied to unpaid rent at the Landlord's discretion.

Upon termination of this lease the landlord shall within 30 days return such deposit to the Tenant
less (1) any amounts expended to repair or clean the premises, (2) any unpaid rentals or late payment fees
then due, and (3) the cost of performing any obligations imposed upon Tenant by this lease. The existence
of this security deposit shall not excuse the payment of any monthly rental amount and, in particular, shall
not excuse the payment of the last month’s rent due under this lease agreement.

ARTICLE 6: Rent.

Throughout the term hereof, Tenant covenants and agrees rent shall be made payable to Landlord,
and delivered to Schmidt-Rogers Management, LLC at 996 Garfield Woods Dr., Suite D, Traverse City,
MI 49686 or at such other address as Landlord shall from time to time designate by written notice to
Tenant. The Rent for the premises shall be as follows:

(a) For the partial month immediately following the commencement date due upon execution of
the lease, $1,330.64;

(b) For the first twelve (12) full calendar months of the term hereof, at the rate of $24,750.00 per
annum, payable in equal monthly installments of $2,062.50 per month;

(c) Foreach additional year of the five year term, the rent in subparagraph (b) above shall increase
1.75% pet annum.

(d) Rent shall be due and payable, in advance, on the first day of the month.

() FEES/INTEREST - If any rent or additional rent is not paid within 5 days of the due date,
Tenant shall pay a late payment charge of One Hundred dollars ($100.00) for each such
late payment, together with six percent (6%) per annum interest on all payments more

16




than 30 days delinquent. In addition, Lessee shall pay a twenty-five dollar $25.00 returned
check fee.

ARTICLE 7: Repairs.

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Landlord agrees, at Landlord's own cost and expense, to maintain the exterior of
the building in good and first-class order, condition and state of repair, and to make
the following repairs relating to the premises:

i. all structural repairs;
ii. all repairs to and replacements of the roof and under flooring;

iii. all repairs to the exterior of the premises and the building, including
sidewalks adjoining same;

iv. remove snow from the parking spaces leased herein;
v. all repairs and replacements to utilities systems and sewer lines;
vi. all repairs to any fire sprinkling main and system servicing the premises;

vii. all repairs to the interior of the premises if the need therefore arose as a
result of Landlord's act or failure to act;

The Landlord shall not be responsible or liable to the tenant for any loss or damage
resulting to the Tenant's property or to the Tenant from bursting, stoppage or leaking
of water, gas, sewer, and sprinkler or steam pipes. Nor shall the Landlord be
responsible for any repairs necessary by the acts of the Tenant, its employees or
invitees.

Except as herein above provided, Tenant shall take good care of the premises, shall replace
broken glass and shall do the work required to maintain the premises, the storefront and the
fixtures and equipment therein, including the plumbing and electrical systems located in and
serving the premises, in good working order, except in cases of damage and injury arising
under the provisions of Articles 16 and 17 hereof. Tenant agrees to repair all damages
caused by Tenant or its invitees. Tenant further agrees to remove snow from the sidewalk
in front of the building along Hall Street between driveways.

If Landlord fails to make any of the repairs or to timely perform any of the other obligations
required of Landlord under this lease within thirty (30) days atter written notice from Tenant
of the necessity therefore, Tenant, in addition to any other rights or remedies available to it
hereunder, at law or in equity, shall have the right, but not the obligation, after notice and
consultation with Landlord to make said repairs or to perform such obligations on behalf of
Landlord and to deduct the entire cost thereof from rent due or to become due hereunder. If,
in an emergency in Tenant's opinion, any such repairs are immediately necessary for the

17



proper use, enjoyment or preservation of the premises, no prior thirty (30) days' notice shall
be required but Tenant shall give Landlord whatever notice is reasonable in the
circumstances and may forthwith make said repairs on behalf of Landlord and deduct the
entire cost thereof from rent due or to become due hereunder. In cases of emergency, Tenant
may call Schmidt-Rogers Management at 231-941-0707.

(e) At the end, expiration or other termination of the term hereby granted, Tenant shall promptly
and fully vacate the premises and deliver up the premises in good order and condition,
reasonable wear and tear and damage by casualty, fire, condemnation, the elements or
Landlord excepted. Tenant shall promptly repair any damages to the premises or building
caused by Tenant, its employees, agents or invitees, including but not limited to damage
caused by removal of fixtures. Tenant shall promptly remove all of its personal property and
fixtures.

ARTICLE 8: Compliance With Public Authorities.

Tenant shall during the term hereby granted comply with all statutes, ordinances, rules, orders,
regulations or requirements of the federal, state and local governments which must be complied with by
reason of the nature of the use of the premises by Tenant, and shall also comply with and execute all rules,
orders and regulations issued or made by the Board of Fire Underwriters for the prevention of fires, which
must be complied with by reason of the nature of the use of the premises by the Tenant. In no event,
however, shall Tenant be required to make structural repairs or installations, to install a fire sprinkling
system in the premises or to remove any asbestos containing material or other hazardous substance existing
at the premises, it being understood and agreed all such work shall be Landlord's responsibility at its own
expense if the same shall be necessary to comply with the aforesaid statutes, ordinances, rules, orders,
regulations or requirements.

ARTICLE 9: Increase in Insurance,

Tenant shall not use or occupy the premises or permit the same to be used or occupied for any
business or purpose deemed hazardous on account of fire or otherwise, and, if by reason of the use and
occupancy of the premises hereunder the rate of fire insurance on the building in which the premises are
located shall be increased, Tenant will, on demand, pay to Landlord the amount of such increase. Landlord,
prior to making any demand therefore, shall give Tenant ten (10) days' written notice of any such future
increased insurance premiums and an opportunity to cure the condition which caused such increase.

ARTICLE 10: Access to Premises.

Landlord, and its duly authorized agents and representatives, shall have the right, following
reasonable prior notice to Tenant (except in the case of an emergency), to enter into and upon the premises
during Tenant's business hours for the purpose of examining the same or making such repairs therein as
may be necessary for the safety and preservation thereof.

Landlord shall have the right, following 24 hour notice to Tenant, during Tenant's business
hours, to show the premises to persons wishing to purchase the building, and shall also have the right,
following reasonable notice to Tenant, during the three (3) months preceding the expiration of the term

18



hereby granted and during Tenant's business hours, to show the premises to persons wishing to rent
the premises. Reasonable notice shall include telephone call, voicemail, email, facsimile or standard
mail.

Landlord agrees that any entry by it into the building shall be done in such a manner so as not to
unreasonably interfere with the conduct of normal business operations therein. Landlord shall exert its best
efforts to perform any and all work expeditiously and agrees to keep all interruptions to Tenant's business
to a minimum. If as a result of any entry by Landlord into the building it is necessary to Tenant to suspend
business operations therein, then rent shall abate for the period of time normal business operations are
suspended.

ARTICLE 11: Alterations and Signs.

(a)  Tenant shall provide Landlord with a proposal for any and all alterations to the
Premises. Landlord shall approve, disapprove or conditionally approve such proposals
within 45 days, but if such proposals are for non-structural changes then Landlord shall
approve, disapprove or conditionally approve such proposals within 15 days. Landlord
reserves the right to contract for the performance of such alteration and to pay
contractors in the first instance. In those situations where Landlord contracts for the
alterations Tenant agrees to reimburse Landlord within 20 days of presentation of an
invoice.

In all instances Tenant is responsible for obtaining bids for desired alteration work
and selecting the desired contractor(s). Landlord reserves the right to approve the
use of all vendors selected by Tenant to perform alterations.

(b) All alterations, additions and improvements made by Tenant upon the premises shall
remain upon the premises at the termination of this lease, except that any trade fixtures,
furniture, equipment, signs and other personal propetty installed by Tenant in the premises
during the term hereof shall be removed by Tenant from the premises at Tenant's cost and
expense.

(c) Tenant may from time to time, at its own expense, install and maintain, replace and
relocate on the premises and building its standard identifying signs, parking and/or tow
away zone signs, and lighting effects as are or may be, from time to time, used or
adopted by Tenant. Tenant may place Tenant's standard professionally made signs in
its windows in accordance with Tenant's regular advertising and promotional
programs. However, all signs must be approved in advance by Landlord, which
approval will not unreasonably be withheld.

(d) Tenant shall not modify the facade of the building.
(e) In all instances where the Tenant performs or contracts for the performance of alterations,

tenant shall do all work at its own cost and expense and in full accordance with all rules
and regulations of any governmental authority having jurisdiction and shall save

19




Landlord harmless on account of filing of mechanics' liens or for any other cause arising
from Tenant's making of such alterations or installations.

ARTICLE 12: Utilities.

Utilities are the responsibilities of the Tenant. Any unpaid Tenant utility bills and/or associated
penalties that create a liability to the Landlord or create a lien against the property may be paid for with
any or all of the Security Deposit and Landlord may pursue his legal and equitable remedies under the law
to gain full restitution for any amount in excess of the Security Deposit.

All dumpsters, if any, shall be placed in the designated parking space at the back of the
building as depicted in Exhibit A and must be emptied at least once a week.

ARTICLE 13: Taxes.

Commencing with the Commencement Date, Tenant agrees to pay promptly personal
property taxes which shall include trade fixtures and assessments levied against or based on the
personal property on the premises for and payable during each tax fiscal year thereafter occurring
during the term of this lease.

ARTICLE 14: Insurance.

(a)  Landlord represents that it is currently carrying and that throughout the term of this lease,
Landlord shall carry fire and extended coverage insurance in so called "all risk" form upon
the building and improvements thereof. Such coverage shall include damage by fire and
other casualty typically covered under an "all risk" policy in the vicinity of the building, but
in all events to include coverage for collapse, vandalism, water damage and sprinkler
leakage, comprehensive boiler and machinery insurance and flood and earthquake
insurance. Throughout the term of this lease, Landlord shall also carry a comprehensive
general liability insurance policy with limits of liability of not less than one million dollars
($1,000,000) covering the building and all common areas thereon or appurtenances thereto.

(b)  Tenant agrees to keep the premises insured under a comprehensive general liability
policy, with single policy limits of not less than $1,000,000 for personal injuries and
$250,000 for property damage and shall deliver to Landlord a certificate of such insurance
naming Landlord as an "additional insured."

ARTICLE 15: Waiver of Subrogation.

Each of the parties hereto hereby waives any and all rights of action for negligence against the
other party hereto which may hereafter arise during the term hereof for damage to the building or to the
property therein resulting from any fire or other casualty of the kind covered by standard fire insurance
policies with extended coverage, regardless of whether or not, or in what amounts, such insurance is now
or may hereafter be carried by the parties hereto, or either of them.

ARTICLE 16: Fire & Casualty Damage.

20



(a)

(b)

©

(d)

Except as provided in paragraph (c) hereof, if during the term hereof the premises or
the building shall be damaged in whole or in part by fire or other casualty, Landlord
shall, proceeding with all reasonable diligence and at its expense, repair the damage
and restore the premises and the building to the same condition as existed immediately
prior to such damage.

Tenant shall be entitled to an abatement of all rent and charges to the extent and for the
period during which the premises are untenantable or incapable of Tenant's normal use,
such abatement to continue until the first to occur of (i) the date Tenant reopens in the
premises for its normal business, or (ii) one hundred twenty (120) days following the date
on which Landlord completes its repair and restoration pursuant to paragraph (a) above.
It is further agreed that the term of this lease shall, at Tenant's option, be extended by the
same number of days as normal business shall not have been conducted in the premises
due to the damage or destruction.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the premises or the building shall be damaged or
destroyed by fire or other casualty and the damage is of such a nature that it cannot be
reasonably restored with the exercise of due diligence within ninety (90) days following
the date of damage, then either Landlord or Tenant may terminate this lease by notice given
to the other within forty five (45) days after the date of the damage.

If this lease shall be terminated as aforesaid, then this lease shall terminate and come to an
end as of the date of the damage giving rise to such termination with the same force and
effect in all respects as if such termination was the expiration date set forth herein, and
rent and other charges payable hereunder shall be apportioned and paid up to the date of
said damage and any prepaid unearned rent and other charges payable hereunder shall
forthwith be repaid by Landlord to Tenant.

ARTICLE 17: Condemnation.

(a)

(b)

In the event that during the term of this lease the building or any part thereof, or the use,
possession or access thereof, is taken in condemnation proceedings, by any right of
eminent domain or for any public or quasi-public use, this lease and the term hereby
granted shall terminate and expire on the date when possession shall be taken by the
condemning authorities, and rent and all other charges payable hereunder shall be
apportioned and paid in full up to that date and all prepaid unearned rent and all other
charges payable hereunder shall forthwith be repaid by Landlord to Tenant. As of such
date of taking, this lease shall be deemed terminated and of no further force and effect
and neither Landlord nor Tenant shall be liable to the other for any future rent or other
charges payable hereunder.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if only a part of the building shall be so taken or
condemned, and, in Tenant's reasonable opinion, the remaining portion of the building
shall be adequate and suitable for the purposes of its business, then this lease shall
continue in full force and effect except that the annual rent and other charges payable

21



hereunder shall be reduced in the proportion that the gross floor area of the part so taken
or condemned shall bear to the total gross floor area of the building immediately prior to
such taking. In such case, Landlord shall, at Landlord's cost and expense, as speedily as
circumstances permit, repair all damage to the premises and the building as shall have
been caused by such partial condemnation and taking (including, but not limited to, the
basic building, the storefront and all glass therein). Rent and all other charges payable
hereunder shall abate until the premises have been restored to a tenantable condition,
including a reasonable period after the completion of Landlord's reconstruction for
Tenant to re-fixture and restock the premises. Tenant hereby waives all rights in
condemnation awards, except awards for Tenant's fixtures and equipment and any
separate awards which may be made for Tenant's relocation expenses, value of
improvements and the like.

ARTICLE 18: Subordination of Lease and Non-Disturbance.

This lease shall be subject and subordinate to the lien of any bank or institutional mortgage or
mortgages or bond covenants now or hereafler in force against the land and building of which the premises
are a part, and to all advances made upon the security thereof, provide the holder of such mortgage or deed
of trust shall execute and deliver to Tenant an agreement in recordable form that it will recognize this lease
and all of Tenant's rights hereunder and not disturb Tenant's possession of the premises in the event of
foreclosure or the exercise of any other right or remedy if Tenant is not then in default hereunder beyond
the expiration of all applicable grace, notice and cure periods. Tenant agrees to execute such further
instrument or instruments as maybe necessary to subordinate this lease to the lien of any such mortgage or
deed of trust.

ARTICLE 19: Assignment/Subletting.

Tenant may assign this lease or to sublease, but only upon Landlord’s determination of
acceptability and written approval.

ARTICLE 20: Default.

(a) It is covenanted and agreed that if (i) Tenant shall default in the payment of the rent or any
item of additional rent, or any part of either, and such default shall continue for fifieen (15)
days after written notice to Tenant, or (ii) Tenant shall default in fulfilling any of the other
covenants of this lease and such default shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days after
written notice thereof from Landlord specifying such default, and such default shall
thereafter continue beyond such period as is reasonably necessary to correct such default
and Tenant is not diligently occupied in correcting the same, or (iii) the estate hereby
created shall be taken on execution or by other process of law, or (iv) Tenant shall petition
for bankruptcy or become insolvent according to law, or (v) any assignment shall be made
of the property of Tenant for the benefit of creditors, and if a receiver, guardian,
conservator, trustee in bankruptcy or other similar officer shall be appointed fo take charge
of all or any substantial part of Tenant's property by a court of competent jurisdiction,
Landlord lawfully may, immediately or at any time thereafter, upon prior written notice,
enter into and upon the premises or any part thereof in the name of the whole, and repossess

22



(b)

the same as of its former estate, and expel Tenant, and those claiming through or under it,
and remove its or their effects without prejudice to any remedies which might otherwise
be used for arrears of rent or preceding breach of covenant. Upon entry as aforesaid this
lease shall terminate. Tenant covenants and agrees, notwithstanding any entry or re-entry
by Landlord, whether by summary proceedings, termination or otherwise, to pay and be
liable for on the days originally fixed herein for the payment thereof, amounts equal to the
rent, additional rent, and other charges under the terms of this lease, when those become
due as if this lease had not been terminated, or as if Landlord had not entered or re-entered,
and whether the premises be relet or remain vacant, in whole or in part, for the remainder
of the term or for a period less than the remainder of the term. If the premises are relet by
Landlord, Tenant shall be entitled to a credit in the net amount of rent received by Landlord
in reletting the premises, after deduction of all reasonable expenses (including, without
limitation, reasonable brokerage fees, and the like), and in collecting the rent in connection
therewith. In the event of termination by Landlord as aforesaid, Landlord agrees to use
reasonable efforts to relet the premises so as to minimize the damages suffered by Landlord
and payable by Tenant.

If Landlord shall fail to perform any of its obligations under this lease and as a result thereof
Tenant closes its business operations on the premises, then, in such event, all rent and other
payments required to be made by Tenant under this lease shall abate until such time as
Tenant shall be able to reopen the premises for business.

ARTICLE 21: Miscellaneous Provisions.

(@)

(b)

Notices. Whenever by the terms of this lease any notice, request, demand or other
communication shall or may be given, either to Landlord or to Tenant, the same must be
in writing, and shall be sent by registered or certified mail (return receipt requested),
postage prepaid, or shall be delivered by private overnight carrier or by messenger
service as follows:

If to Landlord: addressed to Traverse City Light & Power Dept. ¢/o Schmidt-Rogers
Management, LLC at 996 Garfield Woods Dr., Suite D, Traverse
City, MI 49686 (or to such address or addresses as may from time to
time hereafter be designated by Landlord by like notice);

If to Tenant: addressed to Tenant at the address set forth on the first page of
this lease until occupancy and then at the premises, (or to such
other address or addresses as may from time to time hereafter be
designated by Tenant by like notice).

Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, all such notices shall be effective
when actually received or refused by the party to whom it is addressed.

Force Majeure. In the event that either party shall be prevented, delayed or hindered in the
performance of any of its obligations under this lease due to strikes, lockouts, Jabor
disputes, acts of God, inability to obtain labor or materials or reasonable substitutes
therefore, enemy or hostile governmental action, riot, civil commotion, fire or other



©

(d)

(©

®

(8

@

0)

casualty, or any cause otherwise beyond the reasonable control of the party obligated to
perform (excluding the financial inability of such party to perform), such event shall
excuse the performance of such patty for a period equal to any such prevention, delay or
stoppage; provided, however, the foregoing shall not be applicable to the payment of rent
or other sums due pursuant to this lease.

Holdover, Any statute, law, custom or practice to the contrary notwithstanding, this lease
and the term hereby granted shall in any event terminate, expire and come to an end on
the date herein specified for the termination thereof, without notice of any kind from
either party to the other. In the event Tenant holds over after said date except under a
renewal of this lease as hereinafter provided, then and in such event Tenant shall be
deemed a month to month Tenant and at one and a half (1.5) times the current monthly
fixed rental and otherwise on the same terms as herein provided.

Legal Costs. In the event of any lawsuit, action or proceeding by either of the parties hereto
against the other by reason of any matter or thing arising out of this lease, the prevailing
party shall recover from the other its costs and expenses relating thereto including not only
its legal costs but actual attorneys' fees for the maintenance or defense of said action, suit
or proceeding.

No Waiver. A waiver by either party of any breach or failure by the other to perform any
of the covenants, agreements or conditions of this lease shall not bar the enforcement of
any other rights or remedies for any subsequent breach or failure of any of the same or
other covenants, agreements or conditions.

Estoppel Certificates. Landlord and Tenant agree, on the written request of the other, to
provide each other promptly, with a written statement certifying the status of the lease, the
dates of commencement or expiration hereof, the rentals payable hereunder, the existence
(ifany) of any defaults hereunder and/or any other matter or thing reasonably requested with
regard to this lease or the effectiveness hereof.

Provisions Binding. Except as specifically stated herein, this lease and all of the
terms and provisions hereof shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of
the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Recording. This lease shall not be recorded. However, upon request of either Landlord
or Tenant, the parties agree to enter into a short form notice of lease (in form proper
for recording), which instrument may be recorded by, and at the expense of, the party
so requesting.

Law To Govern. This lease shall be governed by and construed pursuant to the laws
of the state of Michigan, as such laws may exist from time to time during the term
hereof.

Transmittal of Lease. Notwithstanding any actions to the contrary, the transmittal of
this lease and any discussion thereof by the parties is not a binding legal agreement,

10

24




and this lease shall be effective only upon actual execution and delivery thereof by both
of the parties hereto.

(k) Entire Agreement/Invalidity. This lease contains and embraces the entire agreement
between the parties hereto and may not be changed or terminated orally or by any
agreement unless such agreement shall be in writing and signed by the party against
whom enforcement of such change or termination is sought. If any term, clause or
provision of this lease shall be judged to be invalid, the validity of any other term, clause
or provision hereof shall not be affected thereby.

0 Headings. It is agreed that the headings of the various paragraphs herein are for
reference only and are not to be construed as part of this agreement.

(m)  Electronic Documents. After this lease has been duly signed, delivered and received, by
either party to the other party by means of telecopy (fax) transmission or attached to an
email (or similar electronic transmission) in an unalterable image format, this lease shall
be considered as validly delivered as the physical delivery of the signed lease in paper
form. In addition, it is further understood that this lease may be imaged and stored
electronically and introduced as evidence in any proceeding as if an original business
record; and neither party will object to the admissibility of such an image as evidence
in any proceeding on account of having been stored electronically.

(n) Grease Pits. At no time shall tenant have a grease pit within the building or on the
premises.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties has caused this instrument to be executed on
the day and year first above written.

LANDLORD:
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER DEPARTMENT

Tim Arends, Executive Director

TENANT:

By: Jennifer Anderson d.b.a.
Gold and Jaye Jewelry

APPROVED AS TO FORM

W. Peter Doren
Traverse City Light & Power
General Counsel

11




V LIgTHXH

S
T
éfi
8
§
§
:
g
i
i

NOLLY1sgns 1334dis TivH
93IMOd B 1HOIT ALID ISHIAVHL

LAOAYT] ALESHCHL TVaENgD

PAYT JomoY
3% bs 0ot “xoxddy
THDVJIS GASVH L

26




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MAY 9, 2017

Q-ST' 19]?

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: Light & Power Board

From: Tony Chartrand, System Engineer/Key Accounts

Date: May 2, 2017

Subject: Project Authorization Request — Barlow #1 and #2 Transformer Upgrade Project

Staff has prepared a packet of information following this memo and is requesting authorization from the
TCL&P Board for staff to proceed with the development, design and installation of Barlow #1 and #2
Transformer Upgrades Project. This project was approved in the TCL&P Six Year Capital Improvements
Plan.

Staff recommends Board approval of the project authorization for the Barlow #1 and #2 Transformer
Upgrades Project and seeks the necessary board approvals for expenditures in order to complete the
project by June 30, 2018.

This item is on Consent Calendar as it is deemed non-controversial. Approval ofthis item on the Consent
Calendar means you agree with staff’s recommendations.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter other than clarifying questions, it
should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the agenda for full
discussion. Ifafter Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the following motion would
be appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY , THAT THE

BOARD APPROVE AS PRESENTED THE BARLOW #1 AND #2 TRANSFORMER
UPGRADE PROJECT AND DIRECTS STAFF TO SOLICIT CONSTRUCTION BIDS AND

MATERIAL QUOTES FOR THE BOARD’S CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL.

27




WP\ rRavERSE CITY

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST %3 LIGHT & POWER

69/13.8kv Barlow #1 and #2 Transformer Upgrades .
&
PAR# 2017-2

Date of Board Presentation/Consideration: May 9, 2017
Budgeted in Capital Plan:  Yes CIP:  $1,500,000

Objective: Target Completion date of June 2018
Project Description:

Installation of higher rated transformers to replace the existing transformers that were installed in
1989 - Barlow Transformer #1 and nearing its end of its useful life and 1980- Barlow Transformer
#2 at its end of its useful life. The existing transformers are 12/16 MVA and the replacement
transformers are 12/16/20 MVA similar to the transformers located at South Substation.

Project Purpose and Necessity:

On February 13, 2017 the load tap changer (LTC) of the Barlow #1 substation malfunctioned and the
LTC incorrectly reduced the transformer output voltage by the maximum 10%. Historically, the
transformer has had these same issues with the LTC, but not to this extent. This change in voltage
could lead to customer complaints due to interrupted service, and the possibility of damaging
equipment within the system.

Additionally, the system study performed in August 2016 showed that Barlow Transformer #2 is
operating at 51%, above the 40% threshold for a normal system peak load condition. The study
stated that if one of the transformers was lost at Barlow Substation the other transformer would be
significantly above the normal operating threshold and be at or near 80%. If this transformer
unexpectedly had to pick up additional load from another substation it could exceed the load
maximum. Operating at this level would only be recommended in short durations as it could lead to
significant wear and irreparable damage to the substation transformer.

Project Benefits:

Staff plans on bidding both transformers out concurrently to obtain both economic and operational
benefits. Economically, quoting more than one transformer tends to lead to better pricing.

Operationally, this will reduce risk exposure of a substation transformer causing voltage issues
within the system that may cause customer service interruption along with potential equipment
damage, because of significant LTC failures that TCL&P is currently experiencing at this substation.
It will increase system reliability by reducing the contingency risk of overloading a transformer if one
were to trip offline, because each new transformer could handle the load of both transformers.

Additionally, it will enhance operational efficiencies by having the transformers manufactured by the

same vendor leading to systematic maintenance, and will increase ease of transferring the loads
between the transformers.

Page 1 of 2

28




69/13.8kv Barlow #1 and #2 Transformer Upgrades
5

A\ TRAVERSE CITY

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST '%J— )§ LIGHT & POWER
PAR# 2017-2 >

Other Alternatives:

Replace the LTC controller at approximately $300,000, but based on the ages of the transformer full
replacement is recommended.

Timing of Project:
The transformers will be placed out for bid after this project authorization is approved with the bid
award expected to be approved at the June 2017 board meeting for board approval. Installation of

the transformers will take place spring of 2018 with final operation date of June 2018.

Timeline (Gant Charts) and Expenditures

Revised
Prelim. Board Approval
Description Quantity  Cost Date

¢ Engineering/Design/Const Mgmt - 50k Not applicable - internal
e Site Work - 40k Winter 2017/2018
e Transformer 2 1.2MM June 2017
e Transformer installation - 25k June 2018
e Contingency (10%) - 131.5k

Total 1.45MM

Preliminary Engineering Cost Estimate: $1.45 M Target Completion date of June 2018
Financing Method:

Cash from TCL&P fund balance. Bonding will not be required.

Additional Revenues:

There will be no additional revenues, however, installation of new transformers will lessen the
possibility of future outages due to equipment failure, which results in lost revenues.

Impact on O&M Expenses:

Reduce maintenance costs due to currently existing because of the LTC issues. However, periodic
preventative maintenance plan will continue.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends L&P Board approval of the Barlow #1 and #2 Transformer Upgrade Project
Authorization and necessary expenditures in order to provide safe and reliable distribution service to
its customers.

Page 2 of 2

29




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MAY 9, 2017

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: Light & Power Board

From: Tony Chartrand, System Engineer/Key Accounts

Date: May 2, 2017

Subject: Project Authorization Request — Critical and Large Customer Improvements #1

Staff has prepared a packet of information and is requesting authorization from the TCL&P Board for
staff to proceed with the development, design and construction of Critical and Large Customer
Improvements #1 Project. This project was approved in the TCL&P Six Year Capital Improvements
Plan.

Staff recommends Board approval of the project authorization for the Critical and Large Customer
Improvements #1 Project and secks the necessary board approvals for expenditures in order to complete
the project by December 31, 2017.

This item is on Consent Calendar as it is deemed non-controversial. Approval of this item on the Consent
Calendar means you agree with staff’s recommendations.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter other than clarifying questions, it
should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the agenda for full
discussion. Ifafter Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the following motion would
be appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY , THAT THE

BOARD APPROVE AS PRESENTED THE CRITICAL AND LARGE CUSTOMER
IMPROVEMENTS #1 PROJECT AND DIRECTS STAFF TO SOLICIT CONSTRUCTION BIDS

AND MATERIAL QUOTES FOR THE BOARD’S CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL.

30



Critical and Large Customer Improvements #1 @@
A\ TRAVERSE CITY

PROJECT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST %J))s LIGHT & POWER
PAR# 2017-3

Date of Board Presentation/Consideration: May 9, 2017
Budgeted in Capital Plan:  Yes CIP:  $270,000

Objective: Target Completion date of December 31, 2017

Project Description:

In conjunction with the system study last summer, GRP Engineering, Inc. focused on the service
reliability of the utility’s top ten critical and largest customers. This project ranked first out of the
Distribution Line Projects proposed within the study.

The project includes installing a new 15 kV recloser on Cass Road Bus #1 and reconfiguring the
circuits within the substation to add a new circuit. Replacing the underground circuit exit CD22 at
Cass Road Substation with 750kCM 15kV CU cable along with installing an automatic transfer
switch and additional metering equipment.

Project Purpose and Necessity:

Increase system reliability to the utility’s highest demand customer, which is also the second highest
load customer, by replacing aged, undersized cable reducing the risk of cable failure. Minimizing
long duration outages by adding a redundant feed off of the other transformer located at Cass Road
Substation and installing an automatic transfer switch. The switch will allow for an automatic
transfer of load to the redundant circuit feed if the feeding circuit was to fault or transformer was
tripped offline.

Project Benefits:

This will benefit the large customer by allowing immediate restoration of service and minimally
impacting their operations if a transformer trips offline or a circuit faults.

This project will enhance our ability to switch load within the Cass Road Substation as the utility
has the ability to use the spare recloser for the redundant feed when not being utilized by the
customer.

Other Alternatives:

None viable that will meet planning objectives

Page 1 of 2

il




Critical and Large Customer Improvements #1

é«'ﬁ;\ TRAVERSE CITY
gl;(;LEZCi]TI ;X;JTHORIZATION REQUEST %oy LIGHT & POWER
Timing of Project:

Material quotes, contractor’s bid documents, and award of contract and purchase orders in
summer and early fall of 2017 with preliminary work beginning in fall of 2017 with the project
complete by the end of December 2017.

Project Budgeted Expenditures

Description Cost

Labor and Equipment $72,900
Materials 131,600
Contingency 30,700
Engineering/Construction Mgmt. 20,500
Total $255,700

Preliminary Engineering Cost Estimate: $255,700 Target Completion date of December 31,
2017.

Financing Method:

Cash from TCL&P fund balance as planned for. Bonding will not be required.

Additional Revenues:

There are no additional revenues expected except for potential load growth, however, the utility has
had several outages in the last year. The results of outages particularly the length of them increases

the amount of lost revenues to the TCL&P and impacts the operations of one of the utility’s largest
customer.

Impact on O&M Expenses:

No impact on O&M Expense

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends L&P Board approval of the Critical and Large Customer project authorization

and necessary expenditures in order to provide safe and reliable distribution service to one of its
key account customers.

Page 2 of 2

32




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MAY 9, 2017

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Tony Chartrand, System Engineer/Key Accounts
Date: May 2, 2017
Subject: Boring services for Costco Project

Staff solicited quotes for boring services from three contractors for the Costco Project and the related
relocation of utility infrastructure because of the change in the right-of-way along South Airport Road.
Only one contractor, § Star Directional Drilling Services, Inc., provided a proposal at a cost of $42,800.

Staff is requesting a waiver of the Purchasing and Contracting Policy requiring sealed bids for contracted
services because staff did not believe the costs of this job would exceed that threshold in addition to the
time sensitivity relating to the project.

This item is appearing on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed by staff to be a non-controversial item.
Approval of this item on the Consent Calendar means you agree with staff’s recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying questions, it
should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the agenda for full
discussion.

If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the following motion would be
appropriate:

MOVED BY » SECONDED BY , THAT THE

BOARD AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO WAIVE THE SEALED BID
REQUIREMENT AND ISSUE A CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF
$42,800 WITH 5 STAR DIRECTIONAL DRILLING SERVICES, INC. FOR THE COSTCO
PROJECT; SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO SUBSTANCE BY THE EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR AND AS TO FORM BY GENERAL COUNSEL; AND FURTHER AUTHORIZES
THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO APPROVE CHANGE ORDERS IN THE BEST INTERESTS

OF THE UTILITY.

33




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MAY 9, 2017

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light and Power Board
From: Scott Menhart, Manager of Telecom & Technology
Date: May 9, 2017

Subject: Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) Project Bid Award

On August 9, 2016, the TCL&P Board authorized TCL&P via a Project Authorization Request to
proceed with the Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) Project. Since this time, TCL&P Staff
has received and reviewed all bids submitted for the project. A bid tabulation sheet has been
included in the packet of all bidders of the project for your review.

Throughout the bid review process, TCL&P Staff coordinated meetings with each bid respondent.
The City of Traverse City was also included throughout the entirety of the bid process along with
all correlating meetings to assure successful collaboration and integration with any solution
selected. Given the length of each response, copies of the bids were shared with the City’s Water
Department, TCL&P’s Metering Department, and TCL&P’s Technology Department with each
department reviewing their specific portion within their given expertise. TCL&P staff then
coordinated follow-up meetings with all parties to cover all questions or comments that arose
during the review process.

During the follow-up meetings, TCL&P and City Staff worked collectively to identify and narrow
a solution that would best suit the City of Traverse City and Traverse City Light and Power. Staff
also worked with each respondent to clarify bid pricing and select optional components within the
bid to align with the future operational needs of the utility. As a result, final pricing differs from
original bid tabulation, as necessary.

This was by far one of the most challenging bid reviews that I have been involved in. Each bid
submission was 260-500 pages and the technology utilized was so drastically different in each bid
that it took months to analyze the data in attempt to formulate an “apples-to-apples” comparison.
Staff created a seven-point matrix to help with the selection process by identifying high-level
minimum requirements that will future proof the system. These future proofing requirements were
as follows:

1) TCL&P/City must have complete ownership of the system, network, and software to
ensure that we can migrate the solution to another vendor should the need ever arise.

34



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MAY 9, 2017

2) Any system must be meter agnostic for electric and water meters. This would allow for
using any meters on the system to achieve the same desired outcome, thus not limiting the
City or TCL&P into one meter forever.

3) Meter network must have overlapping routes to ensure successful communications to
meters at all times. This eliminates a single point of contingency failure.

4) Can operate and run within TCL&P’s datacenter. TCL&P owns and operates a large-scale
fiber network and an on premise solution removes the dependency of a third party internet
connection to access the data. This will maintain connectivity to the system for outage
events when the system will be relied upon the most.

5) Ability to interface with current TCL&P Software without third party customization. This
includes Milsoft WindMil, Milsoft Dispatch, ESRI, and SunGard Utility Solutions.

6) The system must contain standard open source protocols to allow for any future technical
grid initiative that TCL&P may deploy in the future. These are protocols such as DNP,
Multispeak, etc.

7) The system must have baseline engineering analytics included so Staff can accurately
analyze the tremendous amount of data that this system will produce.

Note: Preference was for a full turnkey solutions, but was not an absolute requirement for meter
installation alone. However, for network deployment, it was identified as necessary to ensure
proper connectivity from meter endpoint to head-end system.

It is also worth noting that most of these requirements were in the bid specs and some bid
submissions did not meet the specifications. However, given the magnitude of this project, Staff
still reviewed each bid respectfully and met with all respondents for a thorough overview of their
submissions to ensure clarity of their proposal. This was also coupled with a full demonstration
of each application as well. These conversations allowed for any updates to the final submission,
which included optional software module selections and final meter customization and selection.

After a combined effort between TCL&P and the City of Traverse City to thoroughly analyze each
bid and apply the matrix above, Eaton’s bid became the clear choice, as it was the only solution to
hit every single point within the matrix. Their solution not only provided the most robust solution
for the current operating state of TCL&P with easy integration, it also provided high levels of
future proofing. As a result, Staff recommends the bid from Eaton as the best solution to perform
the requirements necessary to bring TCL&P’s infrastructure into advanced metering technologies.
Eaton also submitted a turnkey solution for this project as well ensure successful network
optimization and software integration.

Eaton’s final bid tabulation pricing for TCL&P was $3,573,292. The majority of the costs are
associated with the electric meter replacements. These amounts were based on TCL&P doing the
project solo, without the City of Traverse City. Should the City of Traverse City join the project,

35




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MAY 9, 2017

there will be a cost reduction to TCL&P as the City will be participating in the cost of the network
and any annual recutring costs associated with support.

There are additional expenditures for this project in addition to Eaton’s final bid numbers. These
are as follows: hardware to host the infrastructure ($83,700 — price identified by Eaton), fiber
construction to 14 locations ($140,000), fiber annual fees ($7,700) and a 10% contingency of the
overall project ($380,469) which is consistent with other TCL&P projects

The cost within the Capital Improvement Project (CIP) was set at $5,000,000 and this cost falls
within this scope. A bigger breakdown of these numbers and costs are contained within the packet
for your review. Staff recommends Board approval to Eaton for AMI project, along with
approving the other necessary expenditures identified in the memo. If the Board agrees with
Staff’s recommendation the following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY :

THAT THE BOARD AWARDS A BID TO EATON FOR AN ADVANCED METERING
INFRASTRUCTURE SYSTEM FOR TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER AND
AUTHORIZES THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT
FOR SERVICES, SUBJECT TO REVIEW AS TO SUBSTANCE BY THE EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR AND AS TO FORM BY GENERAL COUNSEL. FURTHER, THE BOARD
DIRECTS STAFF TO OBTAIN QUOTES FOR THE REQUIRED ADDITIONAL
EXPENSES FOR THE FIBER CONSTRUCTION AND HARDWARE TO SUPPORT THE
SYSTEM.

36



G-\ TRAVERSE CITY

?J_g -

e

2/ LIGHT & POWER
Investing Our Energy In You

AMI Pricing Totals

TCL&P Totals

Eaton Bid $3,573,292.45

Hardware $83,700.00

Fiber Install $140,000.00

Fiber Recurring $7,700.00

10% Contingency $380,469.25

Total $4,185,161.70

37



TN
2 C

Powering Business Worldwide”
Eaton Pricing Summary

25 CL200 Residential Electric Disconnect Meters (One-Time)

Electric Meter Price $3,345,702.95
Note: Water Meter Price $2,448,274.75 (Not Included in this Total - CITY Cost)
Electric Meter Total $3,345,702.95

AMI Network & Hardware (One-Time)

AMI Network (Including Field Tools and Electric/Water Shipping) $164,589.50
Hardware (Procurred outside of Eaton) 583,700.00
AMI Network & Hardware Total $164,589.50

Software Modules (One-Time)

DNP Protocol License (Included) _ $0.00
Valt/VAR Management License (TCL&P Only) $25,000.00
Software Module Total $25,000.00

Annual Recurring Fees (Annual)

Yukon ODMS Software Platform with DNP Licensamuded) $0.00
Consumer Portal to present Electric and Water Information (Shared) $19,500.00
Software Maintenance and Technical Support Fee (Shared) $13,500.00
Annual Maintenance and Support for DNP Protocol (Included) $0.00
Annual Maintenance and Support for Volt/VAR Management (TCL&P Only) $5,000.00
Annual Recurring Fees Total $38,000.00

Optional Software Modules (One-Time) - (Potential Future Add-Ons)

Demand Response/Load Management License $20,000.00

Optional Software Modules Total $20,000.00

Optional Annual Fecurring Fees Software Modules (Annual) - (Potential Future Add-Ons)

Demand Response/Load Management License $4,000.00

Fee for On-site Consumer Portal Implementation $14,500.00
Add-on module to Consumer Portal for Prepaid Metering $12,500.00
Optional Software Recurring Fees Total $31,000.00

Total: TCL&P Costs (Solo without City)

Total One-Time Cost $3,535,292.45
Total Annual Recurring Fees $38,000.00

Total Year 1 $3,573,292.45
Total Year 10 $3,953,292.45

Note: 583,700 for Hardware is not part of Eaton, but procurred directly by TCL&P; therefore, not included in
this bid. This is networking switches, etc.

Total: City Costs if joined

Water Meters $2,448,274.75
50% of Hardware at $164,589.50 to TCL&P (AMI Network & Data Center) $82,294.75
50% of Annual Recuring Fees at $33,000.00 to TCL&P $16,500.00
Total Year 1 $2,547,069.50
Total Year 10 $2,712,069.50

Total: TCL&P if City joins project

Total: TCL&P Costs if City Joins Project - 1 Year $3,474,497.70

Total: TCL&P Costs if City Joins Project - 10 Year $3,705,997.70

38



TCL&P Fiber Use

Gateway
1 ABAG (Willow Elem School)
2 ABAF (Traverse City HS CapBank)
3 ABAA (Hall Sub)
4 ABAL (Oak Park Elementary)
5 ABAK (Central Grade School)
6 ABAN
7 ABAE (Barlow Sub)
8 ABAI
9 ABAH (Traverse City Stadium)
10 ABAJ (Traverse Hgts Elem School)
11 ABAD (Parson Sub)
12 ABAB (Cass Sub)
13 ABAC (South Airport Sub)
14 ABAM (W River Road)

Lat
44.77153
44.76935
44.76500
44.76199
44.76005
44.76001
44.75809
44.75635
44.75231
44.74987
44.74749
44.73492

44.7267
44.6526

Long  Height

$10,000.00

-85.64482
-85.58294
-85.62741
-85.59486
-85.62778
-85.61569
-85.60506
-85.62825
-85.62839
-85.59924
-85.56934
-85.62179

-85.6049

-85.5816

20
20
33
20
20
20
33
20
20
20
33
33
33
20

Est Pricg

$10,000.00
$10,000.00
$10,000.00
$10,000.00
$10,000.00
$10,000.00
$10,000.00
$10,000.00
$10,000.00
$10,000.00
$10,000.00
$10,000.00
$10,000.00

$550.00
$550.00
$550.00
$550.00
$550.00
$550.00
$550.00
$550.00
$550.00
$550.00
$550.00
$550.00
$550.00

Totals

$140,000.00 $7,700.00

Fiber Year 10

$140,000.00 $77,000.00

39




S0'06Z'T6T'T S SY3L3IW D1¥1D33
YIVIDY
£8°8LE'0TZT IYLOL
05'886'6 $ | TIVLSNI Y314V NOILYYIdO
TYINYON WYIANOD 8 AdI¥3A
00°005'T S SNOILYDOT
Y3LIN ANY SHILIW TV
40 3Sv8Y1va I19ILvdINOD
1¥S3 NV 30IACYHd
00°05L°E S al ALMIDV ¥3d0¥d
/M NOILYTTVLSNI ¥3 13
40 OLOHd 1SCd ¥ 301A0%d
Tt'096'798 s SYILIN HILYM
6'6VC'0EE 5 SYILIIN DIYLD33
ATNO NOILYTIVLSNI NI “IDIAN3S ALINILA QUYNONYA|
00°TSS0TRZ NOILNT0S 3SINTH-NO TV.L0L
00°69£°922°E NOILNTOS A31SOH TV.LOL
00'8180vL S | (SYA OT) NOILN1OS G3.LSOH
00'000°STE 5 3D14d ¥3INIDVIVQ
00°526'¢9 S 3D14d XYOMLIN INY
00°096'995 S SYILIN ¥ILVYM
00°999°558'T $ SY3LIN DIYLDF13
“JNI ‘NOLLNEI¥LSIA 0253M
00°000°6£9°t VLOL
00°000°0T S NOILYZIMISCoW
00°000'v8 S IN3NIDYNVIN 1D3r0¥d
00°966°SE9T S SH3LIN D1¥LD33
00°590'T69'C S SHILIN ¥ILVYM
00'0F6'L1Z S FYNLONYLSVYANI
VN3
SHUVINTY b 1N3Ss qIg NOILdI¥IS$3a y3aaig

YOLWVYINOD TVLOL

NOILYDIHIYYTO JINOS HO4 SLINIANOJS3IY HLIM DNINYOM UV IM SV AYVNIINITIYd 34V S11NS3Y :310N

INY :awep 109foud

uuoj uonengey pig
19M0d g 317 A1) assanea)

HIMOL % LHOIT

ALID 3S¥IAYUL

40



41

00°000°0% $ | (S¥AOT) NOILNICS d3LSOH
00°00Z'60T $ IHVYMAYYH
MAN TV ONIYND0Yd
00°000'82 $ LNIWNOYIANT
TYNLYIA ONILSIXI
SYINMO NOILYZIILN
(NOILNTOS 31IS
NO) 3D14d ¥ILNIDVLIVA
P T6E0ST $ AYOMLIN [INY
SLYLT8YY'E S SYALIIN HILYM
66'66L°L09'T 8 SY3 13N J31¥1D313
NOLV3
00°000°TSS 00°092'€60°L (syA 0T)
334 dn 135 INIL INO NOILNTOS Q31SOH T¥LOL
00°000"000T S NOILYTIVLSNI
HINOW ¥3d 4313\ ¥3d ST [{43L¥M) 3D18d NYOMLIN [INY
HLNOW ¥3d 4313 ¥3d 05T eI TERE]]
3D14d NYOMLIN IINY
00°000°008'T & SYILIIN H3LYM
00°000°00€C $ SYILIN 21410313
NOZI¥3A
8E°L9V'ES0'S YA
T NOLLNTOS 3SINTYd NO TV.LOL
TTLLLLYE'S SHA
01 NOILNTOS 3SINFYd NO TV.LOL
€0'8ES€T S IYVYMAYYH
M3IN TV ONIMNIOYd
TT'8SS'SET S LNIANOYHIANS
TVNLYIA ONILSIX3
SYIANMO NOILVZITILN
Z NOILLdO (NOLLNTOS 3LIS
NO) 3214d Y3INIOVLVA
857L9'SH0°S ¥A T NOLLN10S Q31SOH 1V.L10L
86°T0Z°€8Z9 SHAOT
Y3INO NOILNTOS A3LSOH 1W.LOL
6E'0TE Y6 S (SYA OT) LNINIIYOVY
Y937 3DIAY3S 1IN
09'625°LET'T 3 (SYA OT A3LSOH)
T NOILdO 86'TOE" V1T s (YA
T Q3.SOH) 3D18d ¥3.LNIDVLVYA
6V TLL'GSE S NYOMLIN [NV

88'80£'08Z'C S

SHALIN HILYM




wods|a) g ASojouyda JBIA ‘WeYUI 11008

:Ag

1amod 13 1431 AlD asiaael |

‘peaJ pue pauado Apngnd asam ulRJay paleIngel spiq ayl

‘LT0Z/12/T A 00:00:Z 18 12y3 ALI9D 03 §1 SIYL
00°SLZ'S9T'E $ (syA 0T)
NOLLNTOS 3SINIY4-NO TVLOL
00°£98'TET'E s (sua 01)
NOILNT0S A3LSOH TVLOL

00°004£0T S ONINIYYL LIS NO

00'05t'9 $ S1coL 3y

00'6SF'ELT $ [ (@3LSOH) 3D14d ¥ALNIDVLVA

00°£98°90T S (NOLLNT0S 3LIS

NO) 301¥d ¥31N3IDVIVA

00'8%S'LL S 3014d NYOMLIN [INY

00°6TL'TER'T S SYILAN HALYM

00°'186'EE6 5 SY3ILIA DI1¥.L0313

SIANYT

TT°99P'68€°S $ (suA01)

NOILNTOS 3SINIYD-NO TVLOL
PT'99 TSS'S S (s¥A 0T)

NOLLNTOS G3LSOH TV.10L
00"000'S0T S (S¥A OT) LNINZIYOV
1¥931321A43S 1IN

42



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MAY 9, 2017

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board -
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director ﬁ
Date: April 24, 2017

Subject: Fiber to the Premises (FTTP) Action Item

HISTORY/STATUS: The board has discussed the FTTP project over the past sixteen
months. This is a complex/complicated topic and understandably, the board was not in
a position to either include or exclude this project from its Six Year Capital
Improvements Plan (CIP). There was a need for more information for how a project like
this would affect the utility, the benefits to the utility, and to the community as a whole.

Over these past months, staff has provided information to the board including
presentation of a feasibility study on different options in going forward. At a recent
meeting of the board where staff sought direction on a specific path forward there
appeared to be many opinions on which path would be the right one, if the utility
undertakes the project at all. However, there was no clear direction to staff from the
board on which direction staff should take.

Therefore, after discussions with the Chairman about placing this item on the board’s
agenda, it was determined that we are at a crossroads, of sorts, and the board should
answer the question “should TCL&P provide this service?” The question of “how” to
provide the service, if at all, were also discussed by the board and that direction came
to three options. Staff, however, cannot pursue three options at once, in my opinion.
Any of the three options could be viable. Fatal flaws with an option, if there are any, will
be vetted out as we proceed, which may lead to a different option. The options are as
follows:

e TCL&P builds/maintains the fiber network and the utility is NOT the ISP. (12 — 18
months before construction commences, normal timeline for this option)

e TCL&P builds/maintains the fiber network and is the sole ISP provider. (18 — 24
months before construction commences, possible additional feasibility study in
the amount of $88K which would add six months minimum)

¢ Include the project in the CIP without selecting either option above (to be
determined by an ad hoc, etc.) (18 — 24 months before construction commences,
possible additional feasibility study in the amount of $88K which would add six
months minimum)

| believe the board should have enough information at this time that it could
conceptually approve this project in its CIP. [f the board fundamentally does not believe
that TCL&P should pursue this project, regardless of any study’s or future information




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MAY 9, 2017

presented, that would not preclude the City from taking it from here and creating a
separate Enterprise Fund under the control of the City Manager and City Commission.
Of course, TCL&P would work with the City in leasing its fiber backbone to support their
efforts.

Approval of including this project in an Amended CIP will require the City Planning
Commission to hold a public hearing and approve/disapprove the CIP. Either way, this
would then go to the City Commission for its approval/disapproval of the Amended CIP
in its entirety. The City Commission cannot disapprove single projects in the CIP, just
the Plan as a whole.

TIMING: If approved in the CIP, the timing of actually building the system is some time
into the future. It is important for the board and public to understand the process and
the reasons why TCL&P could not simply go out for bid and begin construction this
year. The earliest, in my estimation, would be late fall of 2018 or spring 2019. In my
opinion, these timelines will differ depending on the option selected by the board, as
indicated above. Here is why:

With an approved project authorization request, staff would then solicit bids. This would
take a few months and those bids would come back to the board for its consideration of
a staff recommendation. This process would then give the project better cost estimates
to determine how much bonding would be required to complete the project.

The city commission must approve bonding, in accordance with city charter. If
approved by the city commission it may subject their vote to a voter-initiated
referendum, either way they voted (I am uncertain at this time what the period is for a
voter initiated referendum period). For these revenue bonds, the city treasurer would
solicit bids for bond counsel and a bonding agent. A prospectus would have to be
prepared and a bond auction held.

Selecting option #2 or #3 would almost certainly (it would be my recommendation)
require another independent feasibility study for the utility. This would add at least six
months due to bidding, awarding, creating and presenting that study.

As you can see, this is not going to be a fast process, much to the dismay of some,
perhaps. | may have missed a few other steps in the process, but | wanted to give you
a sense of some of the issues we will be dealing with if the board decides to go forward.

SUMMARY: Considering the above, staff is seeking direction from the board on
whether to continue to commit staff resources to the FTTP project. While including it in
the CIP does not commit the board to actually doing the project, it does provide staff
with the assurance that it is a priority of the board to direct its human and financial
resources to the project. Further, the options about how the utility should go forward, if
it chooses to, have been fully vetted. Therefore, | recommend the board make the
decision to either include or not include the project at this time, and give staff direction
on how to proceed.

Staff does not have a recommendation of inclusion or exclusion of the project, or how
the utility should proceed. We will follow the direction of the board. If the board does

44




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MAY 9, 2017

not pass any of the following motions, we may know the direction from the board, or it
may be for other reasons that we will learn from the board members to be considered
going forward. These motions are not being presented to you in any preferential order.

The first motion to gain four votes will be the direction staff will take with this project.

1. MOVED BY » SECONDED BY 3

THAT THE BOARD AMEND ITS SIX -YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN —
2017 FOR INCLUSION OF FIBER TO THE PREMISES PROJECT WITH THE
UTILITY OWNING, OPERATING/MAINTAINING THE NETWORK BUT NOT
ACTING AS THE ISP, AND FURTHER DIRECTS STAFF TO FORWARD THE
AMENDED PLAN TO THE CITY PLANNING AND CITY COMMISSIONS FOR
THEIR CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL.

2. MOVED BY , SECONDED BY y

THAT THE BOARD AMEND ITS SIX -YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN —
2017 FOR INCLUSION OF FIBER TO THE PREMISES PROJECT WITH THE
UTILITY OWNING, OPERATING/MAINTAINING THE NETWORK AND IS THE
SOLE ISP PROVIDER OF SERVICES TO CUSTOMERS, AND FURTHER DIRECTS
STAFF TO FORWARD THE AMENDED PLAN TO THE CITY PLANNING AND CITY
COMMISSIONS FOR THEIR CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL.

3. MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ;

THAT THE BOARD AMEND ITS SIX -YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN —
2017 FOR INCLUSION OF FIBER TO THE PREMISES PROJECT, AND FURTHER
DIRECTS STAFF TO FORWARD THE AMENDED PLAN TO THE CITY PLANNING
AND CITY COMMISSIONS FOR THEIR CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL.

45




TCL&P Board Meeting
5-9-17
TCNewTech on TCL&P High Speed Fiber Project

We believe the path for Traverse City Light & Power (TCL&P) to implement a sustainable high-
speed fiber to the premise (FTTP) infrastructure in Traverse City is as follows.

1.

2.

3.

The TCL&P Board should make a motion to place FTTP dollars ($10 to $16Mil, which
ever number is appropriate) on the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).

As part of the overall motion, the board should instruct staff to develop and issue a
request for proposal (RFP) for the construction of a citywide dark fiber FTTP network for
TCL&P (to be implemented in stages).

As part of the motion, the board should instruct staff to develop and issue an RFP for a
third-party Internet service provider (ISP) to operate the internet service to connected
FTTP customers. This initial ISP contract should be for a period of time (3 — 5 years, the
board and staff should determine the time length that is most appropriate) with the
understanding that at the end of the single source ISP contract period, the contract may
be opened for access of multiple simultaneous competitive ISP providers at that time or
even the option of TCL&P becoming the sole ISP provider at that time.

As part of the motion TCL&P should, instruct staff to develop an online citywide “sign-up”
webpage that outlines estimated speed and pricing options for TCL&P customers.
Customers will be instructed to sign up if they are interested in becoming a high-speed
fiber optic customer. The website should be clear, concise and well-advertised across all
media to encourage customers to visit and sign up so that TCL&P can determine
demand. A nominal refundable deposit should be required at the time of sign-up to
gauge the seriousness of customer's intent. The conversion rate of customers that have
paid a deposit will be very high (versus no deposit). This website should also be up and
operational for a period of 4 to 6 weeks to give TCL&P customers adequate time to sign
up for their preference.

After all the above are completed TCL&P will have all the information necessary to make an
informed decision as to costs involved and the level of demand within the city. This information
will allow TCL&P to accurately estimate the pay-back time on the cost of construction. After the
above information is tallied, the TCL&P board can then have an informed vote at that time as to
whether to proceed with the FTTP project or not.

We suggest the question of whether to provide TV and telephone access to FTTP customers
should be left to the winning ISP bidder.

46




From: Taylor Steve <taylor@eventsnorth.com<mailto:taylor@eventsnorth.com>>
Date: Tue, May 2, 2017 at 12:47 PM

Subject: Supporting Fiber - TCLP Vote

To: ashamroe@traversecitymi.gov<mailto:ashamroe@traversecitymi.gov>

Hi Amy!

| hope all is well with you - | haven’t seen you in a while!

| understand you serve on the Traverse City Light & Power board. | wanted to email you to let you know
that | am in support of the buildout of the fiber network and feel it is important that it be included in the

TCLP 6-Year Capital Improvement Plan that you will bring to vote on May 9th.

Thank you for your consideration of supporting this project. | appreciate being a customer of TCLP and
look forward to the bright future ahead!

Talk to you soon!

Warm Regards,
Taylor Steve

Taylor Steve | Meeting & Event Manager | Events North | NEW ADDRESS: 310 West Front Street Suite
408 | Traverse City, M1 49684 | T: 989.992.1426 | EventsNorth.com<http://eventsnorth.com>
2016 Michigan Meetings + Events Magazine Reader's Choice - Best Event Planning Company

47




=

April 26, 2017 ‘
Mr. Timothy Arends, Executive Director T RAV E R s E

Traverse City Light and Power CITY AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

1131 Hastings St
Traverse City, M1 49686

Dear Mr. Arends,

Thank you for your presentation to our Board at the meeting on April 11" 2017. The Traverse City Area
Chamber of Commerce would like to voice its support for the concept of Fiber to the Premise (FTTP).

High speed fiber internet has been a topic of discussion in our community and surrounding region for
many years and we fear that we have already fallen behind other areas in Michigan. On April 12" 2017,
the Chamber brought Governor Rick Snyder to Traverse City to have a focused discussion on Northern
Michigan’s strengths and challenges of the emerging technology industry in our area. The Governor
specifically mentioned high speed fiber internet connectivity as one of the necessities of a successful 21*
century economy.

We strongly believe that widespread and affordable high speed fiber internet will lay the foundation for
future economic growth and business development. In order for our region to compete with other
similar markets in attracting talent, infrastructure investment, and business development, we must act
soon and bolster this key utility in the Traverse City area.

In addition, we have heard from many of our members that affordable access to high speed internet is a
paramount concern for the future prosperity of their business. It is also a growing necessity for
businesses looking to compete in and possibly relocate to our region. We fully support your ability and
your effort to move this project forward.

Sincerely,

Max Anderson
Executive Director

CcC: Bonnie Alfonso, Chair of the Board of Directors
Traverse City Area Chamber of Commerce

48



2
VENTURE
NORTH

FUNDING | RESOURCES | CONMNECTIONS
May 1, 2017

Mr. Timothy Arends, Executive Director
Traverse City Light and Power

1131 Hastings St

Traverse City, Ml 49686

Dear Mr. Arends,

Venture North Funding & Development offers this letter in support of Traverse City Light & Power’s investigation to
develop a fiber-optic network to deliver high-speed internet service to businesses and residential customers in its
service district.

Reliable and affordable high speed internet Is a priority asset for employers who are considering expanding,
relocating, or remaining in the area. Therefore, TCLP's consideration to strengthen its fiber-optic network would be a
valuable economic development tool for the Traverse City area, and one that Venture North would promote to its
clients who are considering establishing or expanding in the area.

Offering a lower-cost high speed internet option would provide internet access to a larger number of low-to-
moderate income residents in the TCLP service area who are not able to afford current rates. In today’s high tech
society, internet access has become a necessity to secure and maintain employment. In line with Venture North’s
goals, stable employment alleviates poverty, lessens dependence on saocial services, and provides financial
sustainability for low-income families.

Furthermore, reliable and affordable high speed internet is necessary for the implementation of cloud-based energy
efficiency solutions (i.e. remote climate and lighting control from mobile devices, etc). An expanded fiber-optic
network could position companies in the TCLP service area to increase energy efficiency efforts. This could contribute
to increased usage of the Traverse City Light and Power Energy Efficiency Fund managed by Venture North.

Venture North looks forward to working with TCLP as it continues to explore the development of a fiber-optic
network,

Sincerely,

%ernim

Laura Galbraith
Executive Director

CC: Remos Lenio, Chairman, Venture North Board of Directors

202 E GRANDVIEW PARKWAY, TRAVERSE CiTY, MI 49684 P 231.995.7110 F 231.946.2565 WWW.VENTURENORTHFUNDING.ORG PomrrdbyTraverseCONHECT*




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MAY 9, 2017

Sl 19}‘?

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: Light & Power Board E
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director(ﬂ'
Date: May 2, 2017

Subject: Combustion Turbine Operating Agreement

Over the past year staff has been working with Michigan Public Power Agency (“MPPA”) on reviewing,
analyzing, and updating the Kalkaska Combustion Turbine Operations and Maintenance Agreement
(“CT Agreement”). This process began by providing a response to a solicited proposal for operations
and maintenance services and ended by revising the CT Agreement in place since September 13, 2010
between the two entities.

The main purpose of revisiting the CT Agreement was for MPPA to solicit proposals from various
entities for operations and maintenance services and to compare the cost of external third parties to
Traverse City Light & Power (“TCL&P”). The largest financial impact from the submitted TCL&P
proposal was to allow for full reimbursement of payroll costs of personnel assigned to the Kalkaska
Combustion Turbine (“CT”) instead of only direct actual hours worked and incorporating administration
overhead costs. The results of the proposal process showed that TCL&P was very competitive with the
other parties, but still provided the most cost effective bid.

The current CT Agreement is written to reflect this reimbursement change based on the cost of the FTE
position assigned to the CT that will allow the utility to be reimbursed for indirect costs such as paid
time off and benefits at actual cost instead of an estimated benefits percentage along with administration
overhead costs. This results in the utility being provided a larger reimbursement from the other project
participants.

Additionally, this document was revised to be more of a professional agreement and more clearly
describes the responsibilities of each entity with current project needs, energy market requirements and
operations and maintenance industry standards.

The term of this revised CT Agreement is from June 1, 2017 through December 31, 2021.

The CT Agreement has been approved by MPPA at their last board meeting on April 12, 2017 and has
been reviewed by General Counsel.

Staff recommends the Board authorize Kalkaska Combustion Turbine Operations and Maintenance
Agreement with MPPA as it allows for full recoupment of costs along with providing clarity to required
responsibilities by each entity. If the Board agrees with the staff’s recommendation, the following
motion is appropriate:

MOTION ON NEXT PAGE

50



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MAY 9, 2017

MOVED BY » SECONDED BY ;

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY TO ENTER INTO
THE KALKASKA COMBUSTION TURBINE OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE
AGREEMENT WITH MPPA; SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO SUBSTANCE BY THE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND AS TO FORM BY GENERAL COUNSEL.

51




OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT

Between

Michigan Public Power Agency

And

Light and Power Department of the City of Traverse City

52




Table of Contents

IRBCT DAL D ccsimmisiciiosonsins i asionshssssbons nomsnneanass sonacnsssmsmsssssbsnms omsiniosbos s 3 K 08 B SRR S s s
ARTICLRT,  TYEETRETTONS coumumurmyssonmmissmnivsvinsesss oiesmisiisitiomnmsssmsnattsstammeessssssmermonsesms i cessmsss 4
ARTICLE 2. SERVICES ......ooiiiiiriiiiniieieieesesssssis s ssssssssst st sssessssssssssesssesssssssss e seseseesesse. 6
ARTICLE D, TRV 55000055555 5500555000 00535850065 545855854158 Sommsnommes s mvame s seoAAA R Amers s R VS S SS S SRS e aa S 7
ARTICLE 4.  FEES AND PAYMENT ......cocotisinmiiimrinnterestessssssssssseseesessesessssssssssssssss s sssss s eean 8
ARTICLE S,  TINSTIRANCE i5uis0s055:055600053055550iammnsmnass s sammsrsrsssmensess serssn ssstessesomvssvsssesinse s sasiasss siissssostinsasnst 9
ARTICLE 6. COMMUNICATION AND NOTICES........cccooovuuireceresrsesesessesssessssssssssssssessssessesssseesessens 10
ARTICLE 7. INDEMNIFICATION .....ovreuiniineiirinsetessssessssesssessessassesssesssessssesssesssssssss s sss s 10
ARTICLE 8. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY ..c.i..coommossssiisssissssnsesassssssemnsamerssronsonsersssnssserssssonsessessecserse 11
ARTICLE 9. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS ........oiviiieiiereiresssesssmsssesssnesesessesseseeesssesssseeseesno 12
APPENDIX A, RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OPERATOR ....covvuvveereeeerereeeresnesseseses s 15
1L ORBRATOR RESPONBIBILITIES ooy ssmmsmmss s smi i I5
APPENDIX B. RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PARTIES — MAINTENANCE ......ooovvevoeeeeoeoeoeooseeoons I
2.1. 'OPERATOR BESPONSIBILITIES umssnmisisisssismmmmnmmsesmmsrsesmsmeressisonsessssssissssn, 17
2.2, OWNER RESPONSIBILITIES ......cccocommurmiiiierummnnmieisssesssssesissssossessesssssseesssssssesssssees s 18
APPENDIX C.  RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PARTIES — FUEL .....ccvvetueereeeeeseeereseeeeoee oo 19
3.1. QPERATOR RESPONSIBILITIES ..ot msmmmrissmemmemssoms 19
3.2, OWNER RESPONSIBILITIES ......ccrvusvviiueirerereeesnessssssseesssesssessesessesssssssssssssssssesssssssssssssssenns 19
APPENDIX D. RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PARTIES — ENVIRONMENTAL....ovvvoveooeoeoeoons 20
4.1.  OPERATOR RESPONSIBILITIES ......ccvccstiiunurreesrninisissessineseesssssmssssssessesssssssesssssssss s 20
4.2.  OWNER RESPONSIBILITIES ......cccooveutrmmmmmmumtressssicssssssssessensemsssesssssssssesssessnssssssssssssesesssssons 20
APPENDIX E. RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PARTIES — REIMBURSABLE COSTS oo, 22
5.1.  OPERATOR RESPONSIBILITIES ........ccorimuiimmiererinsereecsessiserseseesssssessssesssssssssssssssssss s sons 4
5.2. OWNER RESPONBIBILITIES ..ccuuussiissssisssssminmnrsssararsrnrasrsrsssssssnsssssssssesssassesssssisssssssonacssssssosse .2
APPENDIX F.  COMMUNICATION AND NOTICES .....ouovveieieeeeeereeeeseesseesesseseesessesseeeses oo 24
ATTACHMENT A. PROJECT DESCRIPTION.......ccovurriiueereereisiseeesessssesessesssssssessesessossssssses e sens 25
OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 2 of 26

53



OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
MICHIGAN PUBLIC POWER AGENCY AND
LIGHT AND POWER DEPARTMENT OF THE CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY

This Agreement is made by and between Michigan Public Power Agency, a public body politic and
corporate of the State of Michigan organized pursuant to Public Act No.448 of 1976, as amended
(“OWNER?”), and Light and Power Department of the City of Traverse City (“OPERATOR”), a Michigan
municipal electric utility and Member of MPPA on June 1, 2017 (“Effective Date”). OWNER and
OPERATOR are sometimes referred to herein as a (“Party”) and collectively as the (“Parties™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, OWNER owns a natural gas fired Combustion Turbine Electric Generation Facility,
including land and associated substation and structures, together known as the Combustion Turbine Unit
No. | Project (“Project”), and

WHEREAS, OWNER has entered into Power Sales and Project Support Contracts with the Member
Municipal Utilities of Charlevoix, Harbor Springs, Lowell, Petoskey and Light and Power Department of
the City of Traverse City collectively known as the Combustion Turbine No. 1 Project participants
(“Participants”) pursuant to which the Participants are entitled, in the aggregate, to 100% of the electric
capacity and energy of the Project, and

WHEREAS, in order to reliably meet the energy and capacity commitments under those contracts
OWNER must properly monitor, maintain and operate the Project, and

WHEREAS, OWNER conducted a competitive solicitation for the purpose of hiring an operator to
perform Operation & Maintenance Services (“Services™) to ensure the Project operates reliably, and

WHEREAS, the Services consist of the Labor, Operations, Maintenance and Materials necessary to
operate the Project in accordance with the tariff requirements of the wholesale electricity market, practices
of the electric utility industry and the gas turbine manufacturer’s operating specifications, and

WHEREAS, the OPERATOR responded to the solicitation with a Services proposal that through
negotiation with OWNER is the subject of the terms and conditions contained this Agreement, and

WHEREAS, OWNER and OPERATOR have created this Agreement to describe the accountability,
responsibility and compensation for Services provided to the Project,

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and other good and
sufficient consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, the OWNER and
OPERATOR hereto agree as follows:

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 3 of 26

54



ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS

1.1. “Annual Budget” is the 12 Month Estimate of revenue and costs prepared by the OWNER for the
upcoming calendar year.

1.2. “Annual Project Maintenance Plan” js the document that details the maintenance, outage, and
overhaul schedules, staffing, known capital and expense budget items, and operating plans, and will
provide the underlying assumptions used in developing the proposed budgets and anticipated
availability of the Project for the period.

1.3. “Bankruptcy” means a situation in which (i) a party’s actions under applicable debtor relief laws
demonsirate an inability to pay its debts as they mature or a need for protection from its creditors;
(ii) a court of competent jurisdiction approves a petition filed against a party, which petition sought
relief for the party’s creditors, and the action of the court remains in effect for an aggregated period
of 60 days (whether or not consecutive); (iii) a party admits in writing its inability to pay its debts
as they mature; (iv) a party gives notice to any person or entity of its current (or pending) insolvency
or suspension of operations; or (v) a party makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors or takes
other similar action for the protection or benefit of its creditors.

1.4. “Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial
banks are authorized or required to close in United States.

1.5. “Contract Year” means: (i) for the first Contract Year, that period from the date of this Agreement
in Atticle 3 to and including December 31 of such year; and (ii) for each Contract Year thereafter,
the calendar year.

1.6. “EIA” means the United States Energy Information Administration.

1.7. “Environmental Regulatory Risk Policy” means the document containing the policies and
procedures for compliance with federal and state regulations pertaining to the Project. Examples
include the Spill Prevention, Control, and Countermeasure (SPCC) plan and the Greenhouse Gas
(GHG) emissions plan to meet the EPA Clean Air Act & its Amendments.

1.8. “EPA” means the United States Environmental Protection Agency.
1.9. “FERC” means the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.
1.10. “FTE” means Full-Time Equivalent (full-time worker).

1.11. “Force Majeure Event” means an event, condition or circumstance beyond the reasonable control
of, and not due to the fault or negligence of, the party affected, and which could not have been
avoided by due diligence and use of reasonable efforts, which prevents the performance by such
affected party of its obligations hereunder; provided, that a “Force Majeure Event” shall not be
deemed to have occurred or to be continuing unless the party claiming Force Majeure complies with
the requirements of Article 9.3 (Force Majeure). Subject to the foregoing, “Force Majeure Event”
shall include, as to either party, explosion and fire (in either case to the extent not attributable to the
negligence of the affected party), flood, earthquake, storm or other natural calamity or act of God,
strike or other labor dispute, war, insurrection or riot, actions or failures to act by governmental
entities or officials, failure to obtain governmental permits or approvals (despite timely application
therefor and due diligence) and changes in laws, rules, regulations, orders or ordinances affecting
operation of the Project, which events were not pending on the date of this Agreement.

1.12. “Fuel Scheduler” is in general the entity that nominates fuel quantities with the natural gas
OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 4 0of 26



pipeline and storage on the Project’s behalf.
1.13. “Generator Interconnection Agreement” is the Generator Interconnection and Operating

Agreement between MPPA and Wolverine Power Supply Cooperative, Inc. entered into on
10/1/2002.

1.14. “Good Utility Practice” means (i) any of the practices, methods, and acts engaged in or approved
by a significant portion of the electric utility industry in the country and geographic region where
the Project is located during the relevant time period, or (ii) practices, methods and acts that, in the
exercise of reasonable judgment on the facts known (or that reasonably should have been known)
at the time a decision was made, could have been expected to accomplish the desired result at a
reasonable cost consistent with good business practices, reliability, safety and expedition.

1.15. “Kalkaska Project Procedures™ is in general the document containing the policies and procedures
covering Project operations, maintenance, emergency response, security, safety, and environmental
compliance jointly maintained by OPERATOR and OWNER.

1.16. “Lender(s)” means (i) any entity that has made loans to OWNER, its successors or permitted
assigns for the financing or refinancing of the Project (or any part thereof).

1.17. “Local Balancing Authority” means the responsible entity for integrating electric generation
resources plans ahead of time, maintains load-interchange-generation balance with a defined
Balancing Authority Area and supports interconnection frequency in real-time,

1.18. “Market Scheduler” is in general the entity that interfaces with the Midcontinent ISO (“MISO™)
on the Project’s behalf to enter market offers and receive dispatch communications.

1.19. “MDEQ” means the State of Michigan Department of Environmental Quality.
1.20. “MDNRE” means the State of Michigan Department of Natural Resources.
1.21. “NERC” means the North American Electric Reliability Corporation.

1.22, “O&M Annual Services Fee Table” means the Table of annual operating Service Fee estimates
provided by OPERATOR to OWNER in their O&M Services proposal that represent not to exceed
costs as set forth in Article 4.

1.23. “OEM” means Original Equipment Manufacturer or the entity that manufactured the natural gas
turbines or Pratt & Whitney.

1.24. “OPERATOR?” has the meaning set forth in the recitals.

1.25. “Operating Manuals” means the operating data, design drawings, specifications, vendors'
manuals, warranty requirements, procedures (including those for maintenance of the Project and
environmental and safety compliance), and similar materials with respect to the Project.

1.26. “OWNER” has the meaning set forth in the recitals.

1.27. “Parameter Monitoring Plan / Startup Shutdown Malfunction Plan (PMP/SSMP)” means the
document that provides the operational and maintenance guidance for the Project during startup,
shutdown, and malfunction events.

1.28. “Parametric Emissions Monitoring System (PEMS)” means the software program used for
emissions monitoring.

1.29. “Project” means the Combustion Turbine Project No. 1 Facility Description in Attachment A,
incorporated hereby reference, along with related assets, together with the piping, hardware,
software, and the buildings at the site from the gas receipt point through the transmission system
interconnection point, operating on real property in Kalkaska, Michigan.

1.30. “Project Agreements” means the agreements relating to the Project, Power Sales and Project

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 5 of 26

56




Support contracts, any resolution or supplemental resolutions related to the bonds that financed the
Project and all other agreements applicable to the Project, permits, and licenses required for the
operation, maintenance and management of the Project, as identified in writing by OWNER.

1.31. “Reimbursable Costs™ has the meaning set forth in Article 4.2 and listed in Appendix E.

1.32. “Renewable Operating Permit” means the document constituting the OWNER’s authority to
operate the Project in accordance with the general conditions, special conditions and attachments
issued by the MDEQ.

1.33. “Services” means the Operation, Maintenance, and Management Services described within this
Agreement provider by OPERATOR to OWNER.

1.34. “Services Fee” means the costs described in Article 4 incurred by OPERATOR and charged to
OWNER for providing the Services each calendar month of the Agreement.

1.35. “Transmission Provider” has the meaning set forth in the Generator Interconnection Agreement.

1.36. “Wholesale Electric System Operator” means the Midcontinent ISO or (“MISO”) or its successors
authorized by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission to control and operate the regional
electric transmission system.

ARTICLE 2. SERVICES

2.1. Scope. OPERATOR shall operate, maintain and manage the Project on behalf of OWNER and
perform the specific duties as set forth in Appendices A through F of this Agreement, attached hereto
and incorporated hereby reference, (“Services™) required by the standards defined in Article 2.2.

2.2. Standards for Performance. OPERATOR shall perform the Services required under this
Agreement in a prudent, reasonable, and efficient manner and in accordance with the (i) Project
Agreements, (ii) all applicable laws, (iii) Good Utility Practice, (iv) the requirements of any
Wholesale Electric System Operator, and (v) all insurance policies specified in Article 5 of this
Agreement. OPERATOR shall use all reasonable efforts to optimize the useful life of the Project
and to minimize Reimbursable Costs and Project outages, derates or other unavailability.

2.3. OPERATOR's Personnel Standards. OPERATOR shall provide as reasonably necessary all labor
and professional, supervisory and managerial personnel as are required to perform the Services as
set forth in Appendices A through I of this Agreement. Such personnel shall be qualified to perform
the duties to which they are assigned and shall meet any requirements for Project personnel under
the Project Agreements. All individuals employed by OPERATOR to perform the Services shall be
employees of OPERATOR, and their working hours, rates of compensation and all other matters
relating to their employment shall be determined solely by OPERATOR (subject to OWNER's
approval rights with respect to the Annual Budget). With respect to labor matters, hiring personnel,
and employment policies, OPERATOR shall comply with all applicable laws. OPERATOR also
shall act in a reasonable manner that is consistent with the intent and purpose of this Agreement and
with OPERATOR’s acknowledgment (hereby given) that OPERATOR has no authority to enter
into any contracts with respect to labor matters that purport to bind or otherwise obligate OWNER.

2.4. Compliance. OPERATOR shall comply with all laws applicable to the operation, maintenance and
management of the Project and the performance of the Services. OPERATOR shall apply for and
obtain, and OWNER shall assist OPERATOR in applying for and obtaining, all necessary permits,
licenses and approvals (and renewals of the same) required to allow OPERATOR to do business or

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 6 of 26

57




perform the Services under this Agreement. OPERATOR shall provide reasonably necessary
assistance to OWNER, to secure permits, licenses, and approvals (and renewals of the same) that
OWNER is required to obtain from or file with any governmental agency regarding the Project.
OPERATOR also shall file such reports, notices, and other communications as may be required by
any governmental agency regarding the Project.

2.5. Operating Records and Reports. OPERATOR shall maintain, at a location acceptable to OWNER,
the Project operating logs, records, and reports that document the operation and maintenance of the
Project, all in form and substance sufficient to meet OWNER's reporting and retention requirements
under the Project Agreements. OPERATOR shall provide OWNER reasonably necessary assistance
in connection with OWNER's compliance with reporting requirements under the Project
Agreements, applicable laws or any other agreement to which OWNER is a party relating to the
Project. Such assistance shall include providing reports, records, logs and other information that
OWNER may reasonably request as to the Project or its operation.

2.6. No Liens or Encumbrances. OPERATOR shall maintain the Project free and clear of all liens and
encumbrances resulting from any action of OPERATOR, except for such liens or encumbrances that
result directly from nonpayment by OWNER of amounts due and owing to OPERATOR under this
Agreement.

2.7. No Action. OPERATOR shall not take any action that would cause a default under any Project
Agreement, except where such action is expressly permitted by this Agreement.

2.8. Emergency Action. OPERATOR shall promptly notify OWNER and take all necessary action to
attempt to prevent or mitigate any such threatened damage, injury or loss if an emergency
endangering the safety or protection of persons, the Project, or property located near the Project.
OPERATOR shall make reasonable efforts to minimize any cost associated with remedial action in
case of such an emergency.

2.9. Action in Extraordinary Circumstances. In the event that:

(a) the Project or major Project equipment suffers an unplanned outage (or OPERATOR
reasonably believes that such an occurrence is imminent), and

(b) OPERATOR has made reasonable, but unsuccessful efforts to notify and communicate with
OWNER regarding such occurrence or imminent occurrence in accordance with the terms of
this Agreement, then

(c) OPERATOR shall:
(i) Take all necessary action to prevent or to mitigate such unplanned outage,
(ii) Make reasonable efforts to minimize any cost associated with such remedial action,

(iii) Continue to attempt to notify and communicate with OWNER regarding the occurrence
and the remedial action

2.10. OWNER Obligations. The OWNER shall have such obligations as are stated herein and in
Appendices B through E attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

ARTICLE 3. TERM

3.1. This Agreement shall commence on June 1, 2017 and remain in effect until December 31, 2021
unless terminated by either OWNER or OPERATOR after giving twelve [12] months prior written

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 7 of 26

58




notice.

3.1.1. OWNER and OPERATOR may waive the Term or Termination provisions of this
Agreement if they mutually determine that a new arrangement or strategy with respect to the
Project operation, ownership or Services to the Project are in the best interest of OWNER and
the Participants.

3.1.2. Upon termination, OPERATOR will cooperate with OWNER in transferring or removing
any equipment or documentation necessary for the continued reliable operation of the Project.

3.2. The September 13, 2010, Operating and Maintenance Agreement between the parties is superseded
by this Agreement except to the extent of any reimbursement obligations of OWNER.

ARTICLE 4. FEES AND PAYMENT

4.1. Services Fee. As compensation to OPERATOR for performance of the Services hereunder,
OWNER shall pay OPERATOR a Services Fee. OPERATOR will invoice OWNER for providing
the Services each calendar month by calculating its cost of labor based on FTE provided in the
proposal unless a different amount is agreed upon by both the OWNER and OPERATOR, actual
overtime incurred for the project, benefits and administrative overhead along with supporting
information sufficient to validate the charges.

A RE The following O&M Annual Services Fee Table is provided by OPERATOR to
OWNER as part of OPERATOR’s O&M Services proposal and represent OPERATOR’s
best estimate of the nof fo exceed costs for providing the Services during each Contract Year
from 2017 through December 31, 2021.

O&M Annual Services Fee Table:

Contract Year | Amount
2017 $250,000
2018 $465,000
2019 $440,000
2020 $412,500
2021 $425,000

4.2. Reimbursable Costs. Inaddition to the Services Fee paid to OPERATOR, OWNER shall reimburse
OPERATOR for approved out of pocket costs incurred by OPERATOR in perforiming the Services.
Examples of such costs are set forth in Appendix E (collectively, the “Reimbursable Costs™). The
Reimbursable Costs in Appendix E are presented as a best example of the types of charges or costs
that could be incurred by OPERATOR in performing the Services but if a cost or charge is not stated
in Appendix E and is incurred legitimately by OPERATOR subject to this Article 4 then OWNER
shall reimburse OPERATOR for such cost or charge. OWNER’s obligation under this provision is
subject to (i) OWNER's express approval of the costs as part of an Annual Budget, (ii) separately
approving the costs in writing, or (iii) OPERATOR incurring costs in accordance with Article 2.8
or 2.9. Expenditures made by OPERATOR in excess of the Annual Budget that are required to
comply with any Law applicable to the Services to the Project, shall be approved and reimbursed
by OWNER. OWNER shall pay Reimbursable Costs along with the monthly payment of the
Services Fee in accordance with the Billing & Payment provisions of Article 4.4.

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 8 of 26




4.3. Billing Period. Unless otherwise specifically agreed upon by the Parties, the calendar month shall
be the standard period for all invoices and payments under this Agreement

4.4, Billing and Payment. Within twenty (20) days following the end of each calendar month,
OPERATOR shall submit to OWNER an Invoice for (a.) the Services Fee incurred during the
previous month and (b.) the Reimbursable Costs incurred for such month.

44.1. Within thirty (30) days after receipt of any such invoice, OWNER shall pay
OPERATOR the sum specified in such invoice, less (i) any amounts previously deposited
with OPERATOR relating to such invoice, and (ii) any portion of such invoice amount that
OWNER disputes in good faith or is permitted to offset under this Agreement.

4.5. Disputes and Adjustments to Invoices. A Party may, in good faith, dispute the correctness of any
invoice or any adjustment to an invoice, rendered under this Agreement or adjust any invoice for
any arithmetic or computational error within twelve (12) months of the date the invoice, or
adjustment to an invoice, was rendered. In the event an invoice or portion thereof, or any other
claim or adjustment arising hereunder, is disputed, payment of the undisputed portion of the invoice
shall be required to be made when due, with notice of the objection given to the other Party.

ARTICLES. INSURANCE

5.1. Coverage.

SallAlk OWNER Coverage. OWNER shall maintain, or cause to be maintained, in force,
insurance with responsible insurers with policies payable to the OWNER and OPERATOR,
as their interests shall appear, against risk of direct physical loss, damage or destruction, at
least to the extent that similar insurance is mandated by law or usually carried by utilities
constructing and operating similar Projects and other properties or rights associated
therewith, including liability insurance and property insurance, all to the extent available at
a reasonable cost and subject to reasonable deductible provisions, but in no case less than
will satisfy all applicable regulatory requirements, including any applicable permit or license
requirements, and conform to Good Utility Practice. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
OWNER may, to the extent permitted by the Project Agreements, and, subject to the
approval of the MPPA Board of Commissioners, self-insure or participate in a program of
self-insurance or group insurance to the extent it receives a written opinion of a qualified
insurance consultant that such self-insurance, after consideration of any existing or required
reserve deposits, is reasonable in light of existing programs or comparable utilities
constructing and operating similar Projects. Owner will, upon request, furnish Operator with
a certificate of insurance identifying the various coverages and insured limits in force at the
time of the request. Owner agrees to use its best efforts to have Operator included as an
additional insured on its policy documents.

5.1.2. OPERATOR Coverage. OPERATOR shall maintain, or cause to be maintained, in
force, insurance with responsible insurers with policies payable to the OWNER and
OPERATOR, as their interests shall appear, vehicle insurance and workers compensation
insurance, against risk of direct physical loss, damage or destruction, at least to the extent
that similar insurance is mandated by law or usually carried by utilities constructing and
operating similar Projects and other properties or rights associated therewith, all to the extent
available at a reasonable cost and subject to reasonable deductible provisions, but in no case

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 9 0of 26

60




less than will satisfy all applicable regulatory requirements, including any applicable permit
or license requirements, and conform to Good Utility Practice. Operator will, upon request,
furnish Owner with a certificate of insurance identifying the various coverages and insured
limits in force at the time of the request. Operator agrees to use its best efforts to have Owner
included as an additional insured on its policy documents.

5.1.3. Cost. All costs incurred by OPERATOR with respect to payment of any deductible
relating to the insurance coverage set forth in this Article 5 shall be deemed Reimbursable
Costs.

5.2. Certificates. On or before the date on which insurance must be provided, each party shall furnish
certificates of insurance to the other party evidencing the insurance required pursuant to this
Agreement. Each party shall cooperate with the other to ensure collection from insurers for any loss
under any such policy.

5.3. Payment of Deductible Amounts. Notwithstanding which party hereto shall have purchased, or
been responsible for the purchase of, any insurance in respect of the Project or otherwise referred to
in this Agreement, OPERATOR shall promptly pay to OWNER any deductible amount related to
any claim against or other cost to OWNER covered under any such insurance policy which arose
due to the gross negligence of OPERATOR.

ARTICLE 6. COMMUNICATION AND NOTICES

6.1. Notices. All notices and other communications (collectively ‘Notices™) required or permitted under
this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be given to each party at its address or fax number set
forth below in Appendix F where appropriate.

6.2. Designated Representatives. Upon execution of this Agreement OWNER and OPERATOR will
designate personnel that will act as the primary point of contact for day to day operational and
maintenance issues of the Project as identified in Appendix F. If these Designated Representatives
change during the course of the Agreement OWNER and OPERATOR must deliver such Notice in
writing.

ARTICLE 7. INDEMNIFICATION

7.1. Indemnification.

() Indemmification by OPERATOR. OPERATOR shall, to the extent permitted by law, indemnify,
defend and hold harmless OWNER, the members thereof, and their respective officers, directors,
employees, agents, Affiliates and representatives (the “OWNER Indemnified Parties”), from and
against any and all claims (in whatever form and to the fullest extent permitted by law) arising out
of or in any way connected with, but only to the extent of, any gross negligence, fraud or willful
misconduct of OPERATOR or anyone acting on OPERATOR's behalf or under its instructions, in
connection with this Agreement and OPERATOR's obligations thereunder. Any costs or expenses
incurred by OPERATOR pursuant to its indemnity obligations under this Article 7.1(a), including
the cost of deductibles with respect to the insurance maintained by OPERATOR or OWNER

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 10 of 26

61




pursuant to Article 5 or losses in excess of such insurance coverage, shall not constitute a
Reimbursable Cost under this Agreement.

(b) Indemnification by OWNER. OWNER shall, to the extent permitted by law, indemnify, defend
and hold harmless OPERATOR, its officers, directors, employees, agents, Affiliates and
representatives (the “OPERATOR Indemnified Parties™) from and against any and all claims (in
whatever form and to the fullest extent permitted by law) arising out of or in any way connected
with, but only to the extent of, any gross negligence, fraud or willful misconduct of OWNER or
anyone acting on OWNER's behalf or under its instructions (other than OPERATOR and its
suppliers, subcontractors, venders, and their subcontractors and vendors and any employee or agent
of the foregoing), in connection with this Agreement and OWNER's obligations thereunder.

7.2. Environmental Liability.

(a) OPERATOR Liability. OPERATOR shall not be responsible or be required to carry
environmental pollution insurance for claims directly or indirectly related to hazardous materials
present at the Project before the date of this Agreement, except to the extent OPERATOR acted with
respect to such materials in a grossly negligent manner. OWNER shall, to the extent permitted by
law, defend, indemnify and hold OPERATOR harmless against such claims, except to the extent
such claims arise from OPERATOR's grossly negligent or intentional acts.

(b) OWNER Liability. OWNER shall not be responsible for claims directly related to hazardous
materials at the Project arising out of the grossly negligent or intentional acts of OPERATOR. This
provision of the Agreement shall not be construed to require OPERATOR to take corrective action
with respect to any hazardous materials at the Project before the date of this Agreement,

(¢) Governmental Actions. If action is required at the Project to comply with any applicable
environmental laws during the term of this Agreement, OWNER (with OPERATOR's assistance)
shall be responsible for the costs of compliance. Costs for compliance action shall only be incurred
by OPERATOR as a Reimbursable Cost with OWNER's prior written consent, unless a
governmental authority requires OPERATOR to incur such costs and expenses prior to obtaining
such written consent.

ARTICLE 8. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

8.1. Limitations of Liability.

(a) Consequential Damages. Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary,
OPERATOR and OWNER each agree not to assert against the other any claim, demand or suit for
consequential, incidental, indirect or special damages arising from any aspect of the performance or
nonperformance of the other party or any third-party engaged by such other party under this
Agreement, and each party hereto waives any such claim, demand or suit against the other in
connection with this Agreement.

(b) Damages Limited to Annual O&M Services I'ee. The aggregate liability of OPERATOR (except
for those claims that are subject to the provisions of Article 7.1(a) (Indemnification by OPERATOR)
or covered by the insurance set forth in Article 5, and then only to the extent such claims are actually
covered thereby, after giving effect to any deductibles, exclusions, limits, or self-insured retentions

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 11 of 26




thereunder) with respect to claims of OWNER arising out of the performance or nonperformance of
obligations under this Agreement shall in no event exceed, during any Contract Year, the Annual
O&M Services Fee payable to OPERATOR during such Contract Year plus the amount necessary
to satisfy OPERATOR's indemnification responsibilities under Article 7.

(c) Personal Liability Limited. OPERATOR and OWNER each understand and agree that there
shall be absolutely no personal liability on the part of any of the members, partners, officers,
employees, directors, agents, authorized representatives or Affiliates of OWNER or OPERATOR
for the payment of any amounts due hereunder, or performance of any obligations hereunder.

(d) Survival. The parties further agree that the waivers and disclaimers of liability, indemnities,
releases from liability, and limitations on liability expressed in this Agreement shall survive
termination or expiration of this Agreement, and shall apply at all times (unless otherwise expressly
indicated), regardless of fault, negligence, strict liability, or breach of warranty of the party
indemnified, released or whose liabilities are limited, and shall extend to the members, partners,
principals, officers, employees, controlling persons, executives, directors, agents, authorized
representatives, and affiliates of such party.

(¢) Exclusivity. The provisions of this Agreement constitute OPERATOR's and OWNER's exclusive
liability, respectively, to each other, and OPERATOR's and OWNER's exclusive remedy,
respectively, with respect to the Services to be performed hereunder and OWNER hereby releases
OPERATOR performing Services hereunder, and OPERATOR hereby releases OWNER
performing its obligations hereunder, from any further liability.

ARTICLE 9. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

9.1. Assignment. Neither OWNER nor OPERATOR may assign its rights or obligations under this
Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party hereto, except that this Agreement
may be assigned by OWNER without such prior consent to any successor of OWNER, to a person
or entity acquiring all or a majority share of the Project.

9.2. Access to Project.

(a) OWNER and its representatives shall have access at all times to the Project and any documents,
materials and records and accounts relating to Project operations for purposes of inspection and
review. Upon the request of OWNER, OPERATOR shall make available to such persons or entities
identified by OWNER as an Agent or Representative of OWNER any operating data, operating logs,
documents, materials or records.

(b) During any such inspection or review of the Project, OWNER and OPERATOR shall cooperate
with each other to have third parties conduct such inspection and review in a manner which causes
minimal interference with OPERATOR's activities. OPERATOR agrees to cooperate in providing
requested information and documentation for the support of any financial or legal transactions
associated with the Project.

9.3. Force Majeure. If either OWNER or OPERATOR is rendered wholly or partially unable to
perform its obligations under this Agreement (other than payment obligations) due to a Force
Majeure Event, the party affected by such Force Majeure Event shall be excused from whatever
performance is impaired by such Force Majeure Event, provided that the affected party promptly,

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 12 of 26




upon learning of such Force Majeure Event and ascertaining that it will affect its performance
hereunder, (i) promptly gives notice to the other party stating the nature of the Force Majeure Event,
its anticipated duration, and any action being taken to avoid or minimize its effect and (ii) uses its
reasonable commercial efforts to remedy its inability to perform. The suspension of performance
shall be of no greater scope and no longer duration than that which is necessary. No obligations of
either party which arose before the occurrence causing the suspension of performance and which
could and should have been fully performed before such occurrence shall be excused as a result of
such occurrence. The burden of proof shall be on the party asserting excuse from performance due
to a Force Majeure Event.

9.4. Amendments. No amendments or modifications of this Agreement shall be valid unless evidenced
in writing and signed by duly authorized representatives of both parties.

9.5. No Waiver. It is understood and agreed that any delay, waiver or omission by OWNER or
OPERATOR with respect to enforcement of required performance by the other under this
Agreement shall not be construed to be a waiver by OWNER or OPERATOR of any subsequent
breach or default of the same or other required performance on the part of OWNER or OPERATOR.

9.6. Fines and Penalties. 1f during the term of this Agreement any governmental or regulatory authority
or agency assesses any fines or penalties against OPERATOR or OWNER arising from
OPERATOR's failure to operate and maintain the Project in accordance with applicable laws
without OWNER's prior written consent, such fines and penalties shall, subject to the limitations set
forth in Article 8, be the sole responsibility of OPERATOR and shall not be deemed a Reimbursable
Cost.

9.7. Representations and Warranties. Each party represents and warrants to the other party that:

(a) such party has the full power and authority to execute, deliver and perform this Agreement and
to carry out the transactions contemplated hereby;

(b) to the best of such party's knowledge, the execution, delivery and performance by such party of
this Agreement, does not and will not materially conflict with any legal, contractual, or
organizational requirement of such party; and

(c) there are no pending or threatened legal, administrative, or other proceedings that if adversely
determined, could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on such party's ability
to perform its obligations under this Agreement.

9.8. Counterparts. The Parties may execute this Agreement in counterparts, which shall, in the
aggregate, when signed by both parties constitute one Agreement. Thereafter, each counterpart shall
be deemed an original Agreement as against any party who has signed it.

9.9. Dispute Resolution. The Parties will attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute or claim arising
out of or in relation to this Agreement through negotiations between senior executives appointed
by each of the Parties with authority to settle the relevant dispute. If the dispute cannot be settled
amicably within thirty (30) Days after delivery of a Dispute Notice, either Party may seek legal
and equitable remedies. Performance of this Agreement shall continue during any dispute or legal
proceeding related to such dispute. No payment due or payable by the OWNER or Service by the
OPERATOR shall be withheld on account of a pending dispute.

9.10. Governing Law. This Agreement is executed and intended to be performed under the laws of the
State of Michigan

9.11. Partial Invalidity. If any term, provision, covenant or condition of this Agreement is held by a
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the rest of this Agreement shall

remain in full force and effect and in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated.
OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 13 of 26

04




9.12. Captions. Titles or captions of Articles contained in this Agreement are inserted as a matter of
convenience and for reference, and do not affect the scope or meaning of this Agreement or the
intent of any provision hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, OPERATOR and OWNER have caused this Agreement to be exccuted
by their duly authorized officers, as of the day and year first above written above (“Effective Date”).

TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER MICHIGAN PUBLIC POWER AGENCY
BY BY
NAME NAME
TITLE TITLE
OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 14 of 26

65




APPENDIX A. RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OPERATOR

1.1.  OPERATOR RESPONSIBILITIES

OPERATOR shall:

1:1.1. Assume care, custody and control and responsibility for the security of the Project and the
day-to day operation and maintenance of the Project twenty four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a
week in accordance with the Project agreements, governmental approvals and rules, all insurance
policies, the applicable contractor, manufacturer and vendor warranties and station manuals, and
provide technical and administrative support as required for Project operation and maintenance for
the purpose of maintaining the operating readiness of the Project

. Respond to dispatch orders from MISO via the Market Scheduler, OWNER, Local
Balancing Authority, or Transmission Provider having authority to start, operate, and stop the
Project

1.1.3. Ensure that a competent management team and skilled workforce staff is adequately trained
via a continuing program of training designed to orient new Project personnel, refresh/cross-train
existing Project personnel, qualify/re-qualify Project personnel, and keep all Project personnel
aware of the safety requirements and emergency procedures based on current and future Project
operational scenarios

1.1.4. Provide the Market Scheduler and OWNER with all required information regarding the
Project’s availability for market offers, operations status, and outage planning 1 hour prior to the
MISO market deadline each day

1.1.5. Perform a review of start requirements, system status, and surveillance of all equipment
routinely used to communicate with the Project 1 hour prior to the MISO market deadline each day

1.1.6. Operate the Project in accordance with the OEM requirements and recommendations, utilize
Good Utility Practice, and comply with all laws and environmental regulations and agreements for
the Project as outlined in the Project Agreements

1.1.7. Monitor and adjust the output of the Project to maintain the electricity output to meet the
Project’s market offer parameters

1.1.8. Manage the Project outages (planned, unscheduled, forced) to minimize outage duration
and impact on production to maximize profitability of meeting efficiency, output, and availability
targets
1.1.8.1. Communicate initial and updated outage information to the Market Scheduler as

soon as practical

1.1.9. Monitor and adjust the reactive output of the Project to maintain transmission voltage levels
within the capability of the Project and requirements of the Generator Interconnection Agreement
or Wholesale Electric System Operator

1.1.10. Respond to and correct generator dynamic instability in accordance with instructions from
MISO via the Market Scheduler, Local Balancing Authority, or Transmission Provider having
jurisdiction

1.1.11.  Maintain Project security and be responsible for the overall Project cleanliness and
preservation

1.1.12.  Conduct normal Project operations and maintenance activities

1.1.13.  Respond to alarms from the Project, and provide such other on-site and remote observation
and control services at the Project as appropriate to ensure its safe and reliable operation

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 15 of 26

66




1.1.14.  Investigate unusual or unique incidents, such as breaker failure, engine motoring, turbine
vibrations & ete.
1.1.15.  Perform all administrative activities related to the Services of the Project including

management of subcontractors, coordination of procurements with OWNER, maintain and update
all manuals and Project specifications and plans, etc.

1.1.16.  Review and provide input regarding operability, maintainability, and environmental and
safety issues pertaining to the Project
1.1.17.  Assist OWNER in complying with all local, state, and federal regulations, including
reliability standards imposed by NERC and Reliability First
1.1.18.  Daily Logbook — Project personnel will collect data during shift
1.1.18.1.  The times of these readings along with any other issues or concerns will be
recorded in the Project logbook

1.1.18.2.  Data from the logbook will be analyzed so that remedial actions can be taken
immediately to correct off-standard performance
1.1.19.  Promptly notify OWNER when OPERATOR identifies circumstances that in the
OPERATOR’S best judgement could result in future operational constraints such as deteriorating
or poorly operating equipment or issues on the property or adjacent property that could interfere
with the successful operation of the Project to avoid potential economic opportunity loss

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 16 of 26

67




APPENDIX B. RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PARTIES — MAINTENANCE
2.1. OPERATOR RESPONSIBILITIES

OPERATOR shall:
2.1.1. Maintain the Project in a clean and workable condition
2.1.2. Perform regular Project maintenance and inspections in accordance with the Annual Project

Maintenance Plan and the Kalkaska Project Procedures

2.1.2.1.  This will include all activities at the Project from the natural gas receipt point through
the Transmission Provider interconnection point

2.1.3. Trouble-shoot and correct Project problems, in conjunction with OWNER, equipment
vendors, and consultants as may be appropriate

2.1.4. Ensure that the Project has the proper inventory of parts and consumables to perform the
maintenance and repair services

215 Provide timely and appropriate on-site maintenance & repair services in order to ensure the
Project is available to dispatch into the wholesale electricity market in a reliable manner

2.1.6, Review OEM service bulletins and, in coordination with OWNER and implement as
appropriate

21T Develop and execute an Annual Project Maintenance Plan detailing scheduled maintenance

activities and operating plans which will be submitted to OWNER by September 15" of each year
for the following fiscal year
2.1.7.1.  Provide high level recommendations for significant scheduled maintenance
activities, equipment replacement & repairs to be performed in the next five years as part of
the Annual Project Maintenance Plan
2,1.8, Assure that the Project meets contract, regulatory, and environmental maintenance and
recordkeeping requirements set forth in the Project Agreements entered into by OWNER
2.1.9. Implement policies and procedures in accordance with the Project Agreements to support
safe, efficient operation of the Project
2.1.10.  Perform all activities in accordance with the Project Agreements, including those relating to
safety, security and fire prevention to ensure that the Project is operated and maintained in a safe
and environmentally appropriate manner in accordance with all local, state, and federal laws and
regulations
2.1.11.  Directly carry out or manage third party contractors to undertake preventive, routine,
predictive maintenance and repairs, periodic scheduled inspections, testing, major maintenance
(outside of any OEM agreements that may be in place), repairs and overhauls
2.1.12.  Purchase and maintain materials adequate to support continuous and successful operation of
the Project in accordance with established procurement procedures with specific emphasis on
critical spares and consumables
2.1.13. Maintain current revisions of all as-built drawings, specifications, vendor information, lists,
clarifications and other materials provided for the Project, and shall design and implement
procedures and protocols for the regular updating of such documentation
2.1.14.  Retain and preserve all records, reports, documents and data, including all data retrievable
from an electronic data storage source, created in connection with the operation and maintenance of
the Project

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 17 of 26

68



2.1.15.  Coordinate all maintenance work with the Market Scheduler, Local Balancing Authority or
Transmission Provider

2.1.16.  Establish and review periodic maintenance plans in coordination with OWNER

2.1.17.  Perform non-shutdown preventative and basic maintenance visual inspections of key
operating systems, instrumentation and controls, general housckeeping and the replacement of oil
filters, air filter, and igniters

2.1.18.  Perform periodic preventative and basic maintenance inspections to ensure the integrity of
the equipment that are unable to be performed while the equipment is in operation

2.1.19.  Coordinate inspections and maintenance to ensure the highest availability and reliability is
achieved

2.1.20.  Monthly Reports - Within seven (7) calendar days after the end of each calendar month,
submit to OWNER a mutually developed monthly progress report in reasonable detail covering
activities conducted during such calendar month with respect to operation and maintenance
(including, if applicable, information regarding power generation, fuel consumption, statts, trips,
availability factor, capacity factor, and gross heat rate and net heat rate), capital improvements, labor
relations and other significant matters

2.121.  Annual Reports - Within forty-five (45) calendar days after the end of each fiscal year,
submit to OWNER a summary report (in such form and substance and with such back-up as
OWNER may reasonably request) covering the performance of the units during the fiscal year, and
the operation and maintenance activities planned or conducted during the previous fiscal year.

2.2. OWNER RESPONSIBILITIES

OWNER shall:
2.2.1, Review and approve the Annual Project Maintenance Plan
2.2.1.1.  Such approval will become the basis for the approved Annual Budget, assuring that
operational goals and operating plans are consistent with the Annual Project Operating Plan

2.2.2, Make periodic Project inspections quarterly or more frequently as necessary

223, Coordinate with OPERATOR to schedule and implement, as required, calibration/testing of
all gauges, meters and recording devices related to the consumption of fuels and water and to the
sale of electricity. Examples include Generator Verification Test Capacity, natural gas flow meter
calibration, and emission stack testing

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 18 of 26

69




APPENDIX C. RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PARTILS — FUEL

3.1. OPERATOR RESPONSIBILITIES
OPERATOR shall:

3.1.1. Provide Fuel Scheduler and OWNER with all required information regarding the Project’s
fuel consumption within one hour of the dispatch start time

312, Submit an hourly natural gas burn estimate for the entire location on a daily basis via the
Burn Sheet Template as described in the Kalkaska Project Procedures

3.1.3. Provide the Project’s updated fuel consumption within one hour of the dispatch offline time
if the Market Scheduler communicates an updated dispatch during the run

3.2. OWNER RESPONSIBILITIES

OWNER shall:

32.1. Maintain natural gas transportation and supply contracts necessary to reliably supply the
Project with natural gas

322, Maintain contracts with a Fuel Scheduler or house those skill sets and tools at OWNER as
necessary to procure, receive, schedule, and/or nominate natural gas on behalf of the Project

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 19 of 26

70




APPENDIX D. RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PARTIES —
ENVIRONMENTAL

4.1. OPERATOR RESPONSIBILITIES
OPERATOR shall:
4.1.1. Ensure the PEMS is continuously available and operational in accordance with EPA
requirements and as specified in the Kalkaska Project Procedures
4.1.2. Provide needed Project records and documentation, including periodic maintenance plans,
to OWNER on a continuous basis, to ensure that
4.1.3.1. OWNER is kept fully informed of activities, maintenance and events
4,1.3.2. OWNER is able to maintain an off-site duplicate of the environmental records in
accordance with EPA requirements
4.1.3.3. OWNER is able to ensure Project is in compliance with the Environmental
Regulatory Risk Policy
4.1.3. Annually review the Project Renewable Operating Permit to ensure necessary maintenance

items are scheduled and verify records exist, are readily accessible at the Project, are adequately
stored, and are maintained throughout the minimum retention period

4.14. Annually review the Environmental Regulatory Risk Policy and ensure necessary
environmental compliance activities and verify records exist, are readily accessible at the Project,
are adequately stored, and are maintained throughout the minimum retention period

4.1.5. Function as secondary liaison with the EPA, MDEQ, MDNRE and other regulatory agencies
in coordination with OWNER as needed

4.1.6. Ensure the Project is in compliance with the Parameter Monitoring Plan / Startup Shutdown
Malfunction Plan (PMP/SSMP)
4.1.7. Monitor the underground holding tank level and the scheduling of a waste handling company

to remove tank contents when they reach 80% capacity

4.1.8. Maintain personnel as the named contact for the generator waste profile form on file with
the waste handling company for emptying the underground holding tank

4.1.9. Maintain personnel as the named hazardous waste contact on file with the MDEQ

4.1.10.  Prepare and submit all routine reports for the Project as requested relative to performance,
including environmental performance records, waste handling, maintenance and repair status,

Project operating data, and any other information reasonably requested or required to be maintained
by EIA, EPA, FERC, MDEQ, MDNRE, MISO, NERC, and OWNER

4.2. OWNER RESPONSIBILITIES

OWNER shall:
42.1. Apply for and maintain operating and environmental permits as required
42.2. File emissions and operating reports as required

4.2.3. Maintain the Environmental Regulatory Risk Policy

4.2.4, Function as primary liaison with the EPA, MDEQ, MDNRE and other regulatory agencies
as needed

4.2.5. Ensure the generator waste profile form on file with the waste handling company is correct

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 20 of 26

71




for the underground holding tank

4.2.6. Provide primary compliance with all local, state, and federal environmental regulations,
including Reliability Standards imposed by NERC

4.2.7. Annually review the Project Renewable Operating Permit, 40 CFR Part 75, and
Environmental Regulatory Risk Policy records

4.2.8. Designated Representatives may visit the Project periodically to ensure the environmental
monthly reporting data gathered is accurate and support the Project personnel with any
environmental issues that arise as requested or needed by OPERATOR

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 21 of 26

72




APPENDIX E. RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PARTIES — REIMBURSABLE
COSTS

5.1. OPERATOR RESPONSIBILITIES

OPERATOR shall:

5.1.1 Provide support, including payroll registers, work order reports, effective hourly labor rates,
and receipts or invoices, for any requested reimbursements

5.1.2, Provide the vehicles and insurances used for Project Services activities under this Agreement

5.1.3. Charge OWNER for the portion of the actual vehicle monthly fee as charged to OPERATOR
by the City Government for the dedicated vehicle to be used for Project business and actual fuel
consumption along with any other vehicle used for Project business at the State of Michigan
equipment hourly rate published in MDOT Schedule C of Equipment Rates or by other calculations
as established by mutual agreement, not to exceed the values in 5.2.1.2

5.1.4. Recommend to OWNER any parts, materials, components or third party services costing in
excess of $15,000 that OPERATOR believes are needed for maintenance or operation of the
Project

3:L:S5s Review, approve, and submit the Project Services related invoices to OWNER no later
than the 20" of each month following the calendar month end

5.1.6. Work with the OWNER in creating the Annual Budget with mutual agreement on the
recommended budget to the CT Committee and/or MPPA Board for approval on an annual basis

5.2. OWNER RESPONSIBILITIES

OWNER shall:
3.2.1. Reimburse OPERATOR for the Services provided pursuant to this Agreement as follows:

3.2.1.1; Reimburse OPERATOR monthly for material and other actual costs, including
emergency expenses, associated with monitoring, maintaining and operating the Project
including any ancillary services not covered under this Agreement such as work outside of the
generator, including but not limited to substation maintenance, IT assistance, engineering
assistance or any other work not typically included with daily operations and maintenance

32,12, Reimburse OPERATOR monthly for invoiced vehicle costs for transportation to and
from the OPERATOR service center based on actual charges not to exceed the maximum
amount that would be charged in the table below through December 31, 2021

Annual Vehicle Costs Table:

Contract Year | Amount
2017 $13,500
2018 $23,300
2019 $23,750
2020 $24,250
2021 $24,750
52.1.3. Reimburse OPERATOR for monthly invoiced out-of-pocket costs associated with

the monitoring and dispatching of the Project, including communication line charges, equipment
maintenance, procurement of components and coordination of necessary work with other parties

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 22 of 26

[




performed by OPERATOR

(A) Reimbursable Cost items shall be paid to OPERATOR in accordance with the

requirements of Articles 5 and 7. Reimbursable Costs may include but are not limited to:
1. Spare and replacement parts

All material, tools and equipment necessary to operate and maintain the Project

Chemicals

Lubricants (including proper disposal costs)

Specialized instrumentation, test, and calibration equipment

Rigging and handling equipment

Consumables and general supplies

Cleaning Supplies

. Shop equipment installed in Project

10. Authorized leased equipment

1 1. Major equipment overhauls

12. Building repairs and maintenance (not caused by contractors under the Project

Agreements)

13. Insurance costs in accordance with Article 5.1.3)

14. Costs related to training of plant personnel

15. Consultants' fees and expenses, if incorporated in the Annual Budget or

otherwise approved in advance by OWNER.

16. Contract Services, if incorporated in the Annual Budget or otherwise approved .

in advance by OWNER ‘

DR N LA WN

(B) The following will be Reimbursable Costs when specifically related to Project ‘
support: ‘
Office supplies

Office equipment and furniture

Telephone and other communication service charges
Freight and express mail charges

Janitorial, cleaning, and grounds keeping services

R L B e

5.2.1.4. Review OPERATOR’s recommendations, under normal circumstances, to OWNER
on any parts, materials, components or third party services costing in excess of $15,000 that
OPERATOR believes are needed for maintenance or operation of the Project and provide a
written response concurring with or disallowing OPERATOR’s request

5.2.1.4.1. Reserve the right to disallow reimbursement for any materials or services
purchased by OPERATOR without obtaining OWNER’s prior written consent under
normal circumstances in excess of $15,000 if contrary to OWNER’s direction

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 23 of 26

74




APPENDIX F. COMMUNICATION AND NOTICES

Notices shall be sent to the following addresses:
To OWNER:

Michigan Public Power Agency

809 Centennial Way

Lansing, MI 48917-9277

ATTN:. Amy L. DeLeeuw, Chief Financial Officer
Tel:  (517) 323-8919 x107

Fax: (517)323-8373

E-Mail: ADeleeuw@mpower.org

To OPERATOR:

Traverse City Light & Power

1131 Hastings Street

Traverse City, ML 49686

ATTN: Pete Schimpke, Manager of Operations and Engineering
Tel:  (231) 932-4550

Fax: (231) 922-4638

E-Mail: pschimpke@tclp.org

Designated Representatives are:
OWNER:

Michigan Public Power Agency

809 Centennial Way

Lansing, M1 48917-9277

ATTN: Keith Parrott, Senior Engineer — Generation Services
Tel: (517)323-8919x116

Fax: (517) 323-8373

E-Mail: kparrott@mpower.org

OPERATOR:

Traverse City Light & Power

1131 Hastings Street

Traverse City, MI 49686

ATTN: Pete Schimpke, Manager of Operations and Engineering
Tel:  (231) 932-4550

Fax: (231)922-4638

E-Mail: pschimpke@tclp.org

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 24 of 26




ATTACHMENT A. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

1.0 The Project, consists of
1.1. A simple-cycle combustion turbine electric generating facility fueled with natural gas located at
1750 Prough Rd SW, Kalkaska, MI 49646
1.1.1. The Project generating unit has a nominal rating of 55 megawatts and is comprised of two
Pratt & Whitney FT8-1 aero derivative natural-gas fired combustion turbines, which drive a
single electrical generator
1.2. Natural gas pipeline and metering equipment to connect the generator to the natural gas Project,

1.2.1. The Project is served from the ANR Pipeline Company Prough Road interconnect and gas
meter

1.2.2. Natural gas is injected into the ANR Storage Company Deward location for use in the
Project throughout the year

1.2.3. Natural gas is withdrawn from the ANR Storage Company Deward location for use in the
Project when dispatched

1.2.4. Natural gas can be delivered and received at several points along the Great Lakes Gas
Transmission and ANR Pipeline Company from the ANR Joliet Hub (outside of Chicago) to
the ANR Storage Company interconnect with Great Lakes at Deward through long-term
Transportation Agreements of OWNER

1.3. A 69 kV interconnection and associated electrical protection and relaying equipment to the
transmission system owned by Wolverine Power Cooperative Inc. necessary to settle the output
of the Project to the MISO wholesale electricity market at the Commercial Pricing Node
(“CpNode”) known as CONS.KALK, and

1.4. The Project also has a diesel engine for operating a fire pump, a natural gas-fired “line-heater” to
preheat natural gas fuel before that fuel is supplied to the turbines, and a boiler-heater system for
the engine enclosures

2.0 The Project is located in Kalkaska County, Michigan, approximately 1.6 miles southwest of the town
of Kalkaska

2.1. A parcel of land located in the northwest one-quarter (NW 1/4) of the southeast one-quarter (SE
1/4) of fractional Section 31, T.27N., R.07W., E. Kalkaska Township, Kalkaska County,
Michigan, more fully described as follows:

2.1.1. PART OF THENW 1/4 OF SE 1/4 FRL SEC 31 T27N-R7W DESC AS COM AT THE S
1/4 COR OF SD FRL SEC 31 TH S 89 DEG 54'33”E 1328.91 FT ALG THE S LI OF SD
FRL SEC TO THEE 1/8 LI OF SD FRL SEC TH N 00 DEG 51' 15”E 1322.34 FT ALG
THEE 1/8 LI OF SD FRL SEC TO THE S 1/8 LI OF SD FRL SEC TO A FOUND
CONCRETE MONUMANT AND THE POB TH N 89 DEG 57'54”W 1207.39 FT ALG
THE S 1/8 LI OF SD FRL SEC TH N 44 DEG 10' 35”E 95.52 FT TH 154.08 FT ALG THE
ARC OF A 201.15 FT RADIUS CURVE TO THE LEFT THE CENTRAL ANGLE OF
WHICH IS 43 DEG 53'14” AND THE CHORD OF WHICH BEARS N 22 DEG 13'58”E
150.34 FT THN 00 DEG 17'217E 112.50 FT TH N 89 DEG 52'14”E 376.01 FT TH N 00
DEG 00'35”W 100.97 FT TH N 89 DEG 53'40”E 714.11 FT TO THE E 1/8 LI OF SD FRL

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 25 of 26

76




SEC TH S 00 DEG 54'27”W 424.10 FT ALG THE E 1/8 LI OF SD FRL SEC TO THE POB
CONT 9.87 ACRES SUBJ TO EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD
2.1.2, Tax Parcel Number 40-008-031-010-20
2.2. The Project was completed and placed in commercial operation in December 2002

2.3. OPERATOR has monitoring and remote start capability for the Project via a remote terminal
located at the OPERATOR system control center located in Traverse City, MI

3.0 OWNER has developed an offer strategy for the Project whereby the unit is operated as a peaking
resource on behalf of the Participants

3.1. As a “peaking plant”, the Project operates mostly for short periods of “peak load” when demand
for electricity is high or is operated out of economic merit order when the Transmission Provider

requires voltage or frequency support
3.2. Under this mode of operation, the Project is expected to operate

3.2.1. When power is at or near peak load conditions,

3.2.2. When an unexpected loss of a resource creates a need for capacity and energy for the
Participants and the Project can supply the needed encrgy at a lower cost than is available
from purchases from third parties, or

3.2.3. When the wholesale electric market conditions are such that the output of the Project may
be sold to third parties at a price which will provide a reasonable net revenue benefit to the
Participants

3.3. Under this operating mode, the Project is expected to operate less than 1,000 hours per year,
which will reduce costs to the Participants by stretching the time between major overhauls

3.4. OWNER operates the Project to provide energy & capacity and the associated economic benefit
to the Participants who have long-term Power Sales and Project Support Contracts with the
Project

3.4.1. The Project must operate in the Day-Ahead and Real-Time market as it is a Capacity
Resource in the MISO

3.4.2. To operate the Project effectively, natural gas must be forecasted, purchased and scheduled
to accommodate electric day operation

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE SERVICES AGREEMENT Page 26 of 26

77




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MAY 9, 2017

"51. [9)‘?

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
100 YEARS]
To: Light & Power Board
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: May 2, 2017

Subject: Purchase of 1125 Hastings Street

The property owner of 1125 Hastings Street has offered to sell their adjacent property to
Traverse City Light & Power (TCL&P) for $275,000 as reflected in the purchase agreement
included in the board packet. A map has been included in the board packet to provide you a view
of the parcel in relation to the Hastings Street Service Center.

The building is 4,380 square foot pre-engineered steel constructed commercial building with
2,265 square feet of offices and 2,115 square feet of manufacturing area. The site contains
11,690 square feet. The purchase of this property will allow the service center to be one
continuous parcel and expand the Service Center’s campus.

The plan for this building, if the purchase is approved by the Board, is to use it to house the
substation inventory/equipment that is currently located in the inventory yard and at the
substation locations.  This new building will eliminate the planned need to construct five
individual substation sheds to house this equipment at an estimated cost of $25,000. We believe
this new building will provide a centralized location for this equipment and create an operational
efficiency. Along with the substation inventory, this building will be able to house fiber and
decorative lighting inventory, a portion of which is currently stored outside in the yard. Storing
this inventory inside will eliminate wear and tear caused by weather while in storage.

Northern Michigan Real Estate Consultants appraised this property on October 1, 2015 based on
three approaches, cost, sales comparison, and income approach, and the reported value was
$250,000. Knowing that property values in the city have increased each of the past two years,
staff believes that another appraisal today would be in the ballpark of this offering.

Therefore, Staff recommends the Board authorize the purchase agreement for 1125 Hastings
Street to allow for the expansion of the Service Center’s campus, increase operating efficiencies
and eliminate the wear and tear from weather on the inventory ultimately decreasing its value
and functionality.  If the Board agrees with staff’s recommendation, the following motion is
appropriate:

MOTION ON NEXT PAGE

/8




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MAY 9, 2017

MOVED BY » SECONDED BY

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER
INTO A PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH THE NORTHWEST LAND

DEVELOPMENT, INC IN THE AMOUNT OF $275,000.

79



NORTHERN GREAT LAKES REALTORS® MULTIPLE LISTING SERVICE LLC
BUY AND SELL AGREEMENT
Pagetfof s

B b L% g
Felialt A g, PRI
Listing Cllicz: "

bud

Belling OHca_

Relling REALTCRE: ~ “tins REALTORE. o

Selling REALTORE Sreail. T _ Listing KEALTCR®'s Emal n
Sellivg REALTORE Y Fhong: I Listpg REALTCRE'S Fhoner_ __

- ¥ | -

:»s?,zg{‘_"@ﬁ’- 13\ _ o 251 &l _ Caugen
1. BUYER: Tre undersignad Buyers) vaﬂfi (,lt lghi&iﬂ-ﬂv Ta'g Depadmenl L _ (Buyers
Loge! Mome) darees 10 purchass the folipwing desorited Keal Property sipatad in the Gi g}. T P S —
gt Travorsg Gty . oountyof Grand Traversa and 'zvu-ncfrm,m;.m
pid s non o _ Tsxnsc 28-81 ?ﬁg-ﬂﬁ 10

he wast 15 ;eefgf e sm,i:h 70 foot of Lo;% 5;3 lack 4, Oakwood Addition

lrapady Address: 1128 Hasting, Traverse City. M
e

The Praperly 13 ownad o _MOrthwest Land Dé‘l{eipsn ent, LLC

£

) 16 D
2. PRICE: Thes pyrganee rice shailba § $273,000.00

3. TERME: The szl of flo Progody shall ba cansummated by delyesy of 2 Waeranty Deed of owner fnesang convayng
rrarketsble Sile ugon compianee with sUD peragraoh Balaw:

B~ CASHSALE: Payment of fll purghass piice

[ B CASE TONSW MORTEAGE: Fayment of the fill purchass price, asalingent uoon Buyes :.v‘-f_'\‘i':zg.i I ekiain 81 Buyal's oun

cxpanns @ o motizage oo o lhe amcunt of § i
Suyet 350405 1o migka BpRiAAton far & margans within tree (3} busnoas days of the Efigsiive Dute & o tils Agrearnars, and
en Tonyalt Satar Geigence of tin condifansl Ran commitmant acsaptabla fn Buger wilkin fve {51 pusinggs doys of e
Zfiativa Date of this Aprgsment

Ll ¢ (rMNFR FIRARNCING: S22 Adoendum

| ke purchase reaney £hall 2o paid in cagh or by cashiers €hesk 10 22propiats tita compiny oF @seow sgant

4, CLOSING: Tha s¥'e i3 30 bs diated on o belors “;Jﬁ%jﬂ iy, 7 L« uaiess otherass sgoons o inariing.
The clssing rray Be eonductsd oy a Hle compeay o ctier czorow agzm ‘s‘ it ‘!'rl.-‘f.!'.’.' eorea to equally divds the e

Lorpaneiasie 2aent Caslg fan
£, DIL, GAS, and MINERAL RIGHTS: < any, & ingluded IR YFS [ HNO urless previously seversd Dy formar ownar

£. EDTURES & IMPROVEMENTS: S2le iy aelude o Bulldags, Improvemnsats, farpating, sareens, slofn 2385 403 £0073,

.h:u';bw;;. Luittn Xitches appSancas, TV anmanas, alumbng ond ighting Sgeras, waler sofienar (unfaes ealed), 100005 MEN00K
ood gorsge doar ocpensrs (indludng tansritors), hoating and o condilionag esuipment, if any, agw on tha prapeny  Addilions;

r-:.,_._.,dg.grgz_ QuerRarge T, Witdaw Treatments 15, ,}L;hm srar ), Misrpwares [, Wagher [, Dryer [

Y. PACBRATICNS: Herls iasursrsn, hemeoenors S3eoslgtion [ees, sondominium gwnnsy sseagation fo

s, fusi, sover end wster bills g2 weell o ollvor 29ns essumod o de be paid by e Juyse shall by pre

2 Gyt Tirerse Ared Assoizion of REALTORES
402 140020 07 _15TAME By & Bl Agrpoment oo D'y il

.l .r’l lendrncs

g gtz o1

vw.‘

80




NORTHERN GREAT LAKES REALTORS® MULTIPLE LISTING SERVICE LLC
BUY AND SELL AGREEMENT
Page 2 of 5

glozng, “Curet Taxze (defined as those taies dyg in the calendar year the closing lakas placa) shali bo georaied as of the t:uld
Af glasing 0 e Tllowing mannen county taxgs, induding township and sehoal, shell be pracalad o0 3 celanpisr yer Dasit, 83

aaic in cf.-car;;, ua hal Boflerwill b charged Wit the portion therent rem e pror Jis ra.ary 1t e dase of dlosing. 2nd Buyer mtr
ko bafanee of e year. Gily lawes ard viiiaer“ taxi=s 2hall b2 proeatad an o dus YEto bagis o if paid in edvance 5o thal \.;H‘{* vill 29

crarges with the pedion thersof fram the saar July | o the dite of slazing, arsf Duyer with ha portian fam he date of Coging to te
ot June 30

B. ASSESSMENTS: Unoes athurnisé £ ":1 horain, uf £necisl asgtsamanis aad'or seer, faer ond bendlit chares wihish B
3 lien 5 tho data ol s 255-35:15 shal b faid oy e Solim

9, POSSESSION: Sellor skad deliver gnd Buyer shall sacapt possonsion of (e Propeny autjec: o the ngiis of sry fenanls ator
OIS gays wiler aliging  Feom the dale of ciozng thicugh vacatng the Progeny, Selior sha? pay the sum of

& -)rfgf. _ par day 43 a0 GSSupancy Charga, and ‘n'-ii“.‘ shul ©a fablo for \arzlnr G a{ ] ra[a sharg of ulililies Tha
Gavey shatl romin rm’e lhe gmoant dui Salisr at J,.,tni; tha sum of \,«,ﬂ o as o depasit pgensd e

o ot g

charnes, HAyng 10 e Buver the amount due and reluming trs the Soliar the balanes 85 gotomninad by the date Propany @ vacsiad
and kayz sureadand 16 Buyer 1f poseassion s given piar i naen, that day is nel censdensd a doy of ubsipsnsy

10, PROPERTY DAMAGE: If tha buidingls), fxlures and squismment on e [ropacly ae salintively £maqes of ik C2sroyad Oy
fir o1 olhEWISE Prario m;mr;q tha Buver may lerminate this Agrsemend by wrilen nolics fo Sellzf vath 3 copy ke Listing Sretezs s
Salfing Broker Upon reset of this retize, Salling Sroker shall mtam Be gzpasi o D-J}‘*:l thiz Agrsorrenl shall bz vaid, amd fhe
Parias shall b ne fu.r?.::s;r ity lo one anather, OF Buyer GoEs not send nefice of leomingfion, e cising shall orens and =il
racsads of neuranes of glaims undér aurancs pofoies, any, Shel agorig fo tha cenefit of Buyer

14, SELLER'S DISCLOEURE:
O Muyar ackessledses thal » Seteds Digglosurs Slalament has barn pravide - 1o Buyar
L Sallar shall privide Buyer with # Sellers Digclosure Stament with Sellar's 2cceplance of thim afiar. Puerssant o he Sellar
Macesure ol MCL 55} 251, 0t 550, Buyer wil Tova 72 hours afler hend-dalivery &f Ihe disgiosurg giatermnant (ar 530 fours
ahar delivery by reg igrarad mellin h_-,,mmal-z iz Agresimenl by delpasy of 2 wnllen NoECE 12 Solier or Saliars apsnt
M Sutjec propony axerng fom disgiosuee slalenant,
12. RELEASE! Buyor ang Seles scknowledps thal nénnes Listing Brokar ror Saling Rroker, nar ther r§=;»:-«.-n.'~= apants, nave
rrade any feprasanialions coacsming the candition of f"xc:« progerly covarss py Thiz Agreement o tha mrmm Ay ol tita, and Buysr
and Salle: releass the ind zrg Brokes and Sg‘.llcn: Birekest ard hsir FB{-pL‘“L’:’E ‘*}Lﬂﬁ&, .\‘i‘si,h I'E!-L!"’"[ ta gt daimy f:?lrfl?:l oul of ar
relizled 1010 .gg";grrmg gy gddandung o Q’«uqtar@ﬁr o mll glaime ansag from 20y ;:;u**a:sr::d raprseniations as 1o the physical
aad erviteamental congion of e progerty covored by this Agreament o lhe miEr4etabidy ns fitle; and 2 Glzims wriging f1om any
spezlzl asseserrants aadior uliiity bits wiizh have boen ar may @ ho futum be charged apanst the poopeny copred & oy s
Aqrecmen: and, in zadivien, ngree 10 indemnaify ,md nelt harmiless the Listing Bralar 'r\'! Seling Brokoy znd (Pl respelivid 2RI

fror a0y 304 all shiires reiated (o those matiens Thiz pasagragh sf frall sLewn'e @ dloss
 iobered by Corporate Selffiement Solulicns

43, EAGNEST MONEY DEPOSIT: Buyer deposiis 319,000
{"Esmrowes'] evidenting Buyers gosd faith, whizh daposit shall be *W!;Jha: fa tha purchdss prico ot da“rn; A slardang ALTA
owners policy of Wiz insuranes in tha amount of Lie parchase prse shall be {umishad o Buyar &1 5 Sellz's espenie ond &
coenfnilrent tlj isgue & pf;-.z""} iraurng marksiakia fiva womad in Buger, Induding o 72 2512 16K stpiim septat, shall B¢ ndda
avzilakis far Buvers inzpesian prior b £105iNGg.

-

If this ofar = not socaptad or difle i not markatable, or nsasable of F the femrs o puachass sre cordingant upan abdity o odian &
ras mAAQATE OF @y ihar CONENETTins B spectad, which cannal &2 MeL & i5 deposit shall be refonded o Buye? |2 the ewenl
fe Suysr sud Sebsr baly clate e eamest marsy depedt, 1k earnost manay dapos it shall remain in Escrowss’s trust mscaunt
il & caur asfan has delarminad %o wheen e depesit must he pald, &2 untd the Buyer aed Seller Rave pgreed 0 wiling o the
pinpraiton of 1he goposit [This pereqrach may ke subjesl 16 the duputs resalulizg 2A0VEang i patagianh 26 balaw

14, COMPLIBNGE: The parfies w £o hald io sinct compfignon with Ihe lire nilatons cantaingd i this agrsemant  1f Buysr
ruluges te porsam ils caligations wader this Agreement, the Deposd shal be forolnd and may 20 220 ziind oy tha Selles 10 payment
of his damages, ard Soliar ey rest the forioted Depost 88 ligudated cums g*_-s lot such par-parfamants, breaeh or defaul
Selors aotunl domages exteed the Depes, Seher may pursue such alher legatand £ souibiEle r’&l‘”‘!EdlE: 3z Sallor may have 233inst
tra Bivse  H Seller cafaviss, the Cepozit €734 Do relurnad 10 he Buyar ard Buyar i3y pursua sush legal or eguietle remeson as
Buyer pay have ageng! 02 Sallar

i u. "F,ln:“‘d iperse 133 Asfacatise of REALTOREX
F 400501 MT_ASTAAN_Huy & Seil Afrasent Lol Bsars Jnlis _W_

&
Heiaca znrﬂ-f_'_?k L

81




NORTHERN GREAT LAKES REALTORSS MULTIPLE LISTING SERVICE LLC
BUY AND SELL AGREEMENT
Page 2 of 5

16, LIMITATION: Suyer and Seller 200 that any 208 81 claims of leasuils which ey may havs against e Lizting Sroler mr,i

ey Hecdend 9 55 soonks latng 15 thess servised mo9 be Shd 7> mo0e a0 =ix (§) Months aber B gzt of
ciowing of the Fansaciva U23¢hoed in B2 Agroament  Buyer and Seler wadvs any $alsts of Intafiens o
uzfngf b ghat guivis a closing

.- 2 sriiage £
23 sfects undir Sad

Gftary TS

i

15. PROPERT‘{ INSPECTIONS: Buysr bas gersonplly mupedsd Ihe properdy and aceizds 4 = AS 15 prasent cosdilion a0

rat e Sen no 283 0Rs] wrilies o7 OFE pndorsiand 2% ST At siharansa provinled in thez Antgemant

M e 24

E

e
=

B Tnis offer g coslingent upes salistastory ingpetans of 1he :rgrrf;s al Buyer's chaloe and o Buyed's axpeaze, it iater Hun
= cays of the effedtive date of his .Agre—«.neni Thasz inspactivns may DEde, St mey not ta lirkad o atructural
ﬂd?ﬁf *‘%f:d srivml inSpoctang, Jhﬁa@;@; ang 390 invesligassa, sol !;nm;:: 8z woll ax inggaclione for radon, pogte, rmald

- 5fxtf 2IrREE 10 F*:" = [he ffﬂp\ﬁ ¥ 1!1 = ;.ﬂﬁ’ ﬁ:nti ::L-r M; ST .‘:%ms £ {EE‘.S 1f qur = ot

‘;m-f-ci “hal' = If*f'!'?_“"&.'f‘ i biﬂ = W é,\m t‘r* BL.';EJ‘ Vs ‘;‘s; ;;m{m},, mn J“&g-mu .,-‘_;gg rar
m1n31~ 3 ah % Agrfq:.’s‘n::m in thes teng grosidnd, the Buyor s0slt be deened 19 heve waned s SeRtimgenty ARy foquesi by
E s i wriling ta suostdy ths .ﬂ-grc"rlg: n7 based on the meults of an negecan ghat tcfiﬂ.ssﬁ THid Asrsprmerd uness: (3ithe
=AUEEL 13 ,:.5'-_:'-.:! Ip &y Sefar in wriltig, or (b Phe Buyer remaves the irspachion cesGngancy in ardfing w2 Bg tims iy

2
H

O] Suyer arknow2dges nal Sciing Srokon R EALTCRY 533 recommnesded tat By obizin an inspectan of 108 propsrdy by an
mspuettl gn@er aliesasad contrecior Bupdr 9243 rot deaire 10 Obtain wn indpdtian of the prstany

i? LEAD BASED PAINT DISCLOSURE: f subjent harns was buit odor la 1975, Buyer acinowledses that priss 12 glqniag this Suy
«d Bale Agreoment Buver hoa recelved ang reviewes & 6ioy of the Lens-Bapes Poie Claclosure F'r"rs

12, HOME PROTECTION PLAN: Buyer ani S=llar hava btva“ inf:-'mekl it Home Protechion Flans sqe avziplie  Such gang may
provigs adudioral proteclion wad peraft 1o a Buvar, The pades sdmawiodgs Bat a REAL TORR MSy 60640 cortpgenisiag Snm
F2 comRENes Afforog Mese plens Duysr Clesos Odaes r«m 450 B prcate a Home Prodecton Plan

1% SHIDKE DETECTOR{SE Smows goig hah o innaled a3 rogarnd by w3t Bafor’s ymenig

7 involeslh 2hat ba oabilles 1o reasonnbis allomoy's Sab and 0033, {0 Be gald oy the ran-orevallssd Doy Thaz garegraph shill

1‘3 ATTORKEY'S FEES: in apy aslion of procceding snsing sab of NS sarearenl, ih2 DrvaEag parly, Intiuding any HEALTGR®
B ’vilp‘&‘! 2 tlnsing

fambmr fo soe. trpww
wicEls & s &S

2%, MULTIPLE LISTRNG SERVICE: # E*dgr B parbipend of 3 Board Nuliple LisSg Senvice (MLS
regert Bie salc ds pocs gnd mmns forthe s of ;1;>1f}:zi2v:d Baand Members, MLS yﬂﬂl- ;.31‘;{;, 2od seiEdyibess

u,- a

. AGENCY CONFIRMATION: Buyor orid Beller each poanomiadd rotelpl of an Ajency Dsclodure Feem T Soiing Brokey
:E saperzaa i3 gobing s fobesk onsl T AgentSubesenl of e Scler 1 Suyer's & :Jr,:n! O Dupt Agens [ fonignates
end i 2a Inblogpe Transsatinn [ Cimer o

P,
e

3. ATTACHMENTS: Thwia atachmesls arg ngorsaraled by refomance. [ Agdendwnfsl [ Sofor's Digtisure Sl
1 L oag-Bazed Papd Sellar s Ulaslasun: Farm 3 Usptatied L3ad Drigan Aggapsemn {1 Olaar . ~

T
-

ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS:

Tris Sarpeimant ja cot ollsslive until osd l[ appeaved b ihe TOLAP Saund

5. EFFECTIVE DATE: The torm Elfecivn Dsta” ghall mean the 6310 124 e ol wiich bots Auyer and Selor kave sigrad tis

Apomenl aNT 230ees upsa Sy dems

Zaoyriohl Traedins Srea Aoochx o of SEALTOREE
All2 a0 BT _AaraaR_Huy & Sell &genment e Buyer's Fiilly _ _U"L%

82




NORTHERN GREAT LAKES REALTORS® MULTIPLE LISTING SERVICELLC
BUY AND SELL AGREEMENT
Page 4 of 5

6. DISPUTE RCSOLUTION; If any pary hiss & disoute wilh sneiher regarsng 108 meaning, opsralion, gr enftecamant of any
provieion of s Agresmant, she gizpusng sarlies agrss fo use ranbindiog nadialicn e o se 3 resciulion betsea livgaling o
atrating the disovie  Tney 0r@ roquitad 9 Ulie 1h= sirvcel of tha Ceotat Hesolsiun Sericas of srater mulusly ascaplaole
peutral readiztor 13 bring ther fogather in 81 oasi cne rradizion sessn

27 ELECTRONIC COMMUKICATION: &3 an alimahg o physisal geivey, e parties agten that iz Agrearmenl, &5 ardndemen)
or mid Sapiion of Dls Azrement andior any WITEN ReTE &F CaMMURIRlies in conneciion with this Agreemant may bs toers: 1
Ine Sallar in sare of the Listing REALTOSM 2nd the Buys? in sare of the Selng HEM TORD via aactrsain mall o7 by facyhnie vis (o
contact infarmation sl 1040 s30ve. Aay such communiagtion shat be casmad Safivansd of the time it is 220t or frensmilisd. Saller
rroresents 50 wartants thst an slaciale ool adiass has been provided fo listisg REALTORO Fom which Solier may reant
glecrenic mail Boyor reprps=nls 2o warreats thet an ohecleores 2mait addn2ss 0as bonn peodded to Seling REALTCRS foa winch
Eugar may redelae alzstrores Ml The paties sgmee that e elaglanic tgnaturas and iritlals shel be doemad o ba vald and

ponding upsn 1hg parlizs S50 ceigiral gignatures of initiz's wors prezant 7 the decumenis in the nansweirg of meth pany

22, ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Buyer acknowadyss raoaipt of & 2py i shis Agrezmant Buyer &rd S2er sgre hal 15 i5 thg ealire
agraorrent batwesn the partas ard that thera are na siher writed ar omil undarstaadings  Bupsr and Soief IURRg® siree et thig
Azrervant suparssdes any and =l prics agroamants, CHIoTRanETSE, OF raprosentations made by the panties or Bair aganis

22, COUMNTERPARTS: Thiz fAgraement may be aigned in any MWMDEr o couniensans wit e aemg ofzal &2 0 e sipnalere o
cach countemnart wene Upon The: 2ama Firement

5

20, HEIRS, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: {his Agrewnent tinds Saller, Sslar's porsnesl recrosootalves and hets, &0 anyone
enpcesding 1o Seler's ilareat 1 the propady. Buyer ehall not pazign 58 Ag spamanl vl Solisr's pricr willon prarrssien

18 5 :
21, T OFFER WILL EXPIRE o PP 2T 2017 o 500 U oam B P or

¢pon Seller's receipl of revegation from Boyer, whizhover i earlisr,

Toos ia 5 lopal dosument [1is recommanped 1 10d Buynr st @0 aftormay be 1¢130d fo pass uoon tha matslality of the e L2 0T
praperly invshaed ad 1o oS Sal e derms of s Agrecmiont Sré ot

OSPOSIT ACENGWLIDGED BY ) ’ __ hoenty HEALTORD

33 RECEIRT !5 ACKNOWLEDGED BY BUYER of u copy of thiz Agreemant

Ruyorish

i

Ty Mﬁté@) . [
( =" Frint Naine

Timothy Arends, Exsoutive Dirgclor

Hrimt Hams
Eppenal Addrons Buyar(s] Contacl Neners

st Ul 1
LLER'S ACCEPTANCE: Splizraciapis Buys’s onier Caled tig _{‘?!! zg} day £ f"—*-e}i:’y WAL .20 }

m

i 8
£

e Gzai AN L1 P

N
@ Semrighl Travaise Ajed £23003U00 sf REALICSE6E { 2
407 IRt OF 1ITAAR Ruy 2 8ei Agresment dad Buyess Irisd L Salur'y Falials £ 2% e

83



NORTHERN GREAT LAKES REALTORS® MULTIPLE LISTING SERVICELLC

2UY AND SELL AGREEMENT
Paga5of &
- r‘_,.—-_.i Jf“ﬂ’ f::i‘ ;i.:“; J’ ?
S, + WL r ¥l v g i 0
S o | Dsan Flehmann
_____’-};‘-?Ui’__a?gifﬁ-“ J L g Sriv Narne R
- Print Nama - :

Selsrs f.:ctf'da:f. Nurrhers;

A3 TAa-13i3

" T R o
fUn e AT ;_);a’}‘if !{f‘l )‘ il:ﬁ i
e L i e L ; -
r" 4 “’1-*'[5* I )} { ﬁ{ fi&fff!?ﬁ« o
*ROTE; Flease signa E}eﬁuwishvnurn-m: to appearon the
final papers.
_ dayaf , 20 . Belar zocopiz

24, COUNTERCFFER: im, zs A pounlarnfes 10 Bugers offes d slod EE:"

allifg tapvn 592 samdisans Pl B s R} oyl T —_—

ees—

any fme priae 1o ,cer:en&

& Galler resores the right o cont Nt to Giar tha F.ap—ry iz asls 2nd may somzpl amtir ofer at
. Baflers suthanzad sgent of =3 eagy of this countargfar duly

raosiphhy Seleror _ -

T

acsepled and cignog h; Bl..y-r Urizes this couenleraliar i3 2ocepisd in this mannsr, o6 or Zaliore :
i =t _ Camen, tt hall me dzamed rousked anif the Depoait ehall be mtunod b Buys Balar acknowisdnes
mezmt of 2 cpoy ol thian cowionfior Daisd 1his day ol , L M__ . ®

TCanpru

Seyllenr sfar:

36. ACCEPTANGE OF COUNTEROFFER: |f Scllers acueqtencs contitutes a cauntarsiler; Buyer RArly 3055ats sha demrs of s
34 day o . 20__ 2%

counteroffar 25 ssl Torth fn paragrann 340 Calsd his

Oanilpry

3uyar; Tiuye

cereriahl TAMVERE AFED Asonidlon of BRAS TORE R
400200 5_07 15TAR Buy & Telt Ag *a*»::ﬁ'w:,__r.i;*, Supeie i@ L P M‘é Selury Insialy

P
W
432







FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MAY 9, 2017

151. ]9]‘2

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
100 YEARS]
To: Light & Power Board
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: May 2, 2017
Subject: Solar Purchase Power Agreement

Heritage Sustainable Energy, LLC (Heritage) has provided a new bid for solar power. The proposal is as
follows:

1. Heritage installs a 1 MW (AC) solar facility at M72 location in 2017

2. Estimated yearly production: 1,200,000 kWh

3. Heritage and Traverse City Light and Power (TCL&P) enter into a 20-year purchase power
agreement at $.1125/kWh fixed

4. TCL&P receives all renewable energy credits and capacity

5. Heritage to pay costs of upgrading TCL&P’s system (approximately $200,000)

6. Heritage to install 1 to 3 additional MW in 2018 with a 20 year fixed purchase power
agreement with TCL&P at $.0995 utilizing the upgraded interconnect

Following this memo is an analysis that assumes a 13% capacity factor for this project, provides the total
contract production in kWh’s assuming a 0.5% solar degradation each year, total contract cost, and the
average annual cost.

The agreement is then compared to the short run avoided cost of solar based on the different options
mentioned above, which reflects the estimated cost of power if the utility had to purchase from the market,
energy, capacity, and renewable energy credits and incorporates transmission costs through MPPA. It is
referred to as a short run because it is difficult to predict the market beyond 5 to 10 years as the industry
changes through regulations, technology, along with the effects of supply and demand factors such as the
amount and type of generators within the region. However, for this purpose it was projected out until fiscal
year 2025-26 with the assumption it would continue to increase based on conservative inflationary factors
of the first 7 years where data projections were provided.

The initial agreement has an estimated annual premium of $24,794.01 (cost of the contract above
estimated market cost) and each additional MW constructed has an estimated premium of $8,702.33.
Depending on the additional installations if the City were to absorb the premium costs, it would be an
additional estimated $.01-.02 per kW spread over the City’s total electric consumption. The contract could
be structured, at the Board’s direction, to require board approval before any additional solar generation is
constructed at the site,

Should the Board desire to move forward with the project, it would be appropriate to direct staff to
negotiate a purchase power agreement for the Board’s consideration. In addition, the Board could direct
staff to work with the City in consideration of a Governmental Green Rate to absorb the premium costs
associated with the project. The following motion outlines these options:

MOTION ON NEXT PAGE

86




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MAY 9, 2017

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY §

THAT STAFF NEGOTIATE A PURCHASE POWER AGREEMENT WITH HERITAGE

SUSTAINABLE ENERGY, LLC FOR THE BOARDS CONSIDERATION AT A FUTURE
MEETING; AND FURTHER DIRECTS STAFF TO WORK WITH THE CITY IN PRESENTING
A GOVERNMENTAL GREEN RATE IN SUPPORT OF ITS 100% RENEWABLE ENERGY

RESOLUTION.

87




0800°0 S 66'901'9Z S YL GET'TES $ ST60°0 $ 8Y'9v0'E96’S $ S660'0 $ TE6STVEE $ ETO8T'S8Y9  $ TSL'LLT'S9
ym 1ad wniwalg winiwadg ym ad 1B|0S 40 3500 pIpIony ymy 3507 [enuuy Pesued jo S, Y/ Ul uonanpodd
ANd Wniwag |enuuy a8etany Penuod dld uny Joys ay3 uo paseg Jad aoug afesany 150D |e1o) Pesuo)
Iqemauay PRIIUCD JO 350D |10 12101
NOY LYOHS 1500 DVHINOD
NOILdO M €
0800°0 S 99'v0PLT S 9T°€60'8YE $ SI600 S ZEPIE'SLEE g $660°0 S LBTLIIIT $ BYLSPETEY $ vERISK'Er
ymy J2d wniwaiyg winiwRag ymy dod JB[OS JO 3500 PapIony ym 3507 [enuuy Pesue) Jo S, UMY Ul uonINpodd
VU wniwaid |enuuy a8esany nenuo) aoud uny uoys 3yl uo paseg Jad aoug adesony 150D |20 joeiuo)
alqemauay 1DeaIu0) JO 350 |ero] €301
NMY LJOHS 1500 DVHINOD
NOILdO MW T
0800°0 $ E€ETOL'S S 8S'9v0'vLT S ST60°0 S 9T'Z89'/86'T $ 5660'0 $ '980'80T S PLSTLTITT  § LT6'STLTT
ymy 1ad wniwualg wniwaad ymay Jad JB|0S J0 350D paplony ym 350D |enuuy 30e43u0) 40 S,4MD| Ul Uo1INPOoId
224 wniwalg |enuuy agesany Pesjuo) g uny Moys Iyl uo paseg J9d aoug 93eJony 150) |eloL Ppenuo)
I|gemauay 10BJ3UO0) JO 150] [BIO] 18301
NOY LYOHS 1500 LOVYINOD
NOILJO MIN T
8107 |
87200 S TOVEL'YT S £7°083'S6t S L6800 S EV'S8T8YE’T S SZIT0 $ 8¢'80T°2TT S 99'S9T¥HY'T  § LIG'STLTT
ymy Jad wniwaid wniwald yany sad 1BJOS 30 3507 paplony YA 350 |enuuy Penuo) jo S, YM3| Ut uonsnpold
JJLd winiwaig [enuuy adesany Prenuo) aoud uny Joys 3yl uo paseg Jad aoud adesany 350) [ej0) PeluO)
lgemausy 30BAUO0D J0 350D [BI0L | 12101
NNY LYOHS 1500 LDVYINOD
ALIDYAYD %ET

LT0Z

L10Z Aen
uQ13e207 ZLIN - ASiau] a|qeuleisns agellaH
19M0og pue 1yBi7 AuD astanel |

88



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MAY 9, 2017

?-51' |9)"7

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: Light & Power Board @
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director !

Date: May 1, 2017
Subject: Art on Utility Infrastructure

In the past, staff has discussed providing the opportunity for artists to create artwork on utility
infrastructure within the distribution system as a means to prevent graffiti on infrastructure such
as transformer boxes. Additionally, there are other intangible benefits to allowing this artwork
such as adding a sense of place, identity and beautification to the cityscape at various locations
within the City.

These discussions were revisited after a developer recently brought this concept to the attention
of the utility. Staff moved this concept forward by drafting an Executive Order (attached) based
on other utilities policies, which includes guidelines, an application along with internal needs and
external code requirements. This Executive Order was then forwarded on to General Counsel,
Interlochen Center of the Arts and the City of Traverse City’s Arts Commission to gather input
for the final draft of the Executive Order.

The Executive Order covers how the artwork will be created, reviewed and selected, the
application process to have it installed, funding of the artwork, installation, liability for damaged
artwork, and safety concerns.

Not only does this Executive Order provide the benefits of improving the City streetscape and
add uniqueness to the area, it should provide a savings on maintenance costs relating to painting
the transformer boxes over their life. In addition, this is a new way to promote local artists work
in the public for everyone to view and enjoy, while bringing a sense of community to the
neighborhoods.

Staff is presenting this material to keep the Board informed on the new program that will affect
the community and welcomes any feedback you may have.

89



TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER
OFFICE OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

EXECUTIVE ORDER #2017-002

TITLE: ART ON UTILITY INFRASTRUCTURE POLICY

EFFECTIVE DATE:

PURPOSE: The purpose of this policy is to prevent graffiti on utility infrastructure while
adding a sense of place, identity and beautifying the cityscape for the different locations within
Traverse City Light and Power (“TCL&P™) distribution system by placing artwork on the
utility’s infrastructure (transformer cabinets).

POLICY: The Utility will work with community groups and organizations to create various
design/artwork options that can be selected to be placed on utility infrastructure at the request of
a utility ratepayer/sponsor in proximity to the affected infrastructure. Review of the various
design options will be through the City of Traverse City Arts Commission with final approval
from TCLP.

The artwork shall be designed not to restrict any vents or airflow, or any locks or handles and the
cabinet must be fully accessible by the TCL&P’s employees in accordance with NESC
requirements. All safety stickers and identifying numbers must remain visible on the exterior of
the asset.

All designs available for utility infrastructures are and shall remain the property of TCL&P
including but not limited to copy rights.

The requesting rate payer(s)/sponsor(s) will be responsible for funding the artwork/design in
advance.

A utility ratepayer may apply to TCL&P and select from the available artwork/design options for
placement on TCL&P’s infrastructure by submitting an application to TCL&P (application
attached to this Executive Order). In the situation where the property owner is not requesting the
artwork the sponsor must obtain written approval from the property owner in the space provided
on the application. Once TCL&P receives a completed application, it will complete an initial
field verification review to determine acceptability. Once all approvals are obtained the utility
will invoice the applicant for the artwork and installation cost and will install the artwork once
full payment is received.

Page 1 of 2

90



TCL&P will not be responsible for reimbursing the ratepayer/sponsor if the artwork is damaged,
for reasons including but not limited to a transformer upgrade or, repair or replacement due to
circumstances such as a storm, or emergency repair situations. If infrastructure is repaired or
replaced, the TCL&P will notify the applicant of the opportunity to restore the artwork. TCL&P
will also be solely responsible for determining when the artwork has exhausted its life and is
selected for replacement.

TCL&P will either perform or be present to supervise all installations of the artwork. In no
circumstance may any individual who is not a utility employee or designated contractor install
artwork.

Timothy J. Arends
Executive Director and Secretary
Traverse City Light and Power Board

Page 2 of 2

91



TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

1311 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686
(231) 922-4940

Artwork on Utility Infrastructure Application

Ratepayer/Sponsor Name

Address

Phone Number Email

Property Owner Name (if different than above)

Location of Infrastructure

Artwork Selection:

I agree to the artwork and installation costs for the selected artwork at the location described above.

Ratepayer/Sponsor Signature Date

**]f the ratepayer/sponsor is not the property owner, the property owner must agree and
sign below to have the artwork installed on their property.**

I agree to have the artwork installed on my property.

Property Owner Signature Date

(Page 1)

92



On the Boardman River in the heart of Downtown Traverse City

May 2, 2017

Tim Arends

Executive Director
Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings St

Traverse City, Ml 49686

RE: Art on Infrastructure

Dear Tim,

| am writing to express our support of the Art on Infrastructure initiative. We appreciate that TCLP is
open to this concept. There are great examples all over the country of beautiful and creative art works
on utility boxes as well as treatments that camouflage the boxes to disappear into their surroundings.

We are excited to be the first to apply for this program that has the potential for significant positive
visual impact in Traverse City.

Regards,

Michael Wills

Project Manager

328 Munson Ave, Suite B, Traverse City, Michigan 49684 231-941-8800

93




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MAY 9, 2017

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board

From: Kelli Schroeder, Manager of HR & Communications [g__/
Rod Solak, Line Superintendent

i Tim Arends, Executive Director

Date: May 1, 2017

Subject: Recruitment - Alpena Community College

As you are aware, Line Workers are in high demand, making recruiting efforts difficult. To be
proactive, Rod Solak and I recently attended Alpena Community College’s Utility Technology Open
House. This provided an opportunity to not only get an overview of the program, but to also meet
and observe this year’s graduating class.

One of only a handful of schools in Michigan, Alpena Community College’s Utility Technology
Program prepares students to construct, install and repair electrical distribution systems. With its’
new state of the art facility along with a training ground for hands on instruction, we were able to see
the students in action as they demonstrated pole climbing, service installs and equipment operation.

The graduating class of sixty-one was the largest the college has had thus far. Rod and I reached out
to a number of students from Northern Michigan for informal interviews and obtained resumes for
future openings at our utility. We were joined by representatives from Consumers Energy,
Cloverland Electric Cooperative, Great Lakes Energy, City of Niles and IBEW.




